
High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Tuesday, 24 November 2020

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below:

13 November 2020
PART 1
1. Apologies for absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 

 i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
ii) Other Interests. 

3. To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting 

a) 12 February 2020 (Pages 3 - 8)
b) 13 July 2020 (Pages 9 - 10)

4. Audit Findings Report - External Audit (Decision Required) - report to follow 

5. Annual Governance Statement (Decision Required) (Pages 11 - 28)

6. Statement of Accounts (Decision Required) (Pages 29 - 40)

7. Redmond Review Briefing Report (Pages 41 - 48)

8. Internal Audit Progress Report (Pages 49 - 70)

9. Corporate Governance Review (Pages 71 - 78)

10. Internal Audit Annual Report (Pages 79 - 90)

11. Treasury Management Update (Pages 91 - 106)

12. Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit (Pages 107 - 128)

13. Review of the Effectiveness of the Committee (Decision Required) (Pages 129 - 
148)

14. Appointment of Mayor 2021/22 - to follow

Public Document Pack



15. Work Programme (Pages 149 - 150)

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee
Councillor E Thrane (Chair) Councillor O Cross (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Collins Councillor J Douglas
Councillor D Kerr Councillor E Longden
Councillor R Quinn Councillor K Savage
Councillor G Wharmby Mr M Thomas
Mr J Scampion



High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Wednesday, 12 February 2020 at 6.30 pm in The Octagon Lounge, Pavilion 
Gardens, Buxton

Present: Councillor E Thrane (Chair)

Councillors J Collins, O Cross, J Douglas, E Longden, R Quinn and 
K Savage

Councillor A Barrow and Messrs. P Grant, J Scampion and M Thomas were 
also in attendance

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D Kerr and 
G Wharmby

20/30 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held 23 October 2019 be approved as a 
correct record.

20/31 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER
(Agenda Item 4)

Consideration was given to the appointment of an Independent Member to 
the Committee.

RESOLVED:

That Mr John Scampion be appointed as an Independent Member of the 
Audit and Regulatory Committee.

(Mr John Scampion joined the meeting after consideration of this item.)

20/32 2019/20 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT
(Agenda Item 12)

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required the Council to 
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”.  In accordance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report 
periodically to the Audit Committee on the internal audit activity’s 
performance relative to its plan.  The reduction in the insurance contract 
was welcomed.  All of the reports that had been completed had received a 
satisfactory assurance.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 12 February 2020

RESOLVED:

That the progress information contained within the report be noted.

20/33 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (2000) - REVIEW OF 
POLICY AND PROCEDURES
(Agenda Item 13)

The Council must have arrangements in place to ensure compliance with 
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and those 
arrangements are subject to inspection by the Investigatory Powers 
Commissioner’s Office (IPCO). This is achieved through the adoption of a 
set of Policy and Procedures that ensure compliance with the requirements 
of the legislation. The Council has had arrangements and procedures in 
place for authorising and conducting necessary surveillance since 2002. 
Councillors should review the use of RIPA and set the policy at least once 
per year. They should also consider internal reports on use of RIPA 
periodically to ensure it is being used consistently with the policy and that 
the policy remains fit for purpose.

The Policy and Procedures were amended as follows:
 1.3 to read ‘Examples include fraud investigations…’
 7.8 first bullet point to read ‘…surveillance and the 

management…’
 9.1 to read ‘Executive Director (Place) Mr Neil Rodgers’
 9.16 first sentence to read ‘…and regulatory functions, if 

covered by the wording of the original authority.’

RESOLVED:

That, subject to the amendments outlined to the Policy and Procedures and a 
structured annual training programme, the Council’s use of RIPA powers and the 
outcome of the November 2019 Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office 
Inspection Report be noted.

20/34 EXTERNAL AUDIT 2019/20 AUDIT PLAN
(Agenda Item 5)

Grant Patterson was thanked for all his work on the 2018/19 External Audit 
Plan.  Michael Green was welcomed to his first meeting and consideration 
was given to the Audit Plan for 2019/20. Minor typing amendments were 
made and there were no additional significant risks. Discussion took place 
on identifying leased assets, materiality, pensions assumptions and testing, 
audit fee variation and increase to £43,650, scheduled review of contract 
and working to achieve a higher rating.

RECOMMENDED:

That Council be recommended to note the External Audit Plan for 2019/20.

Page 4



Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 12 February 2020

20/35 EXTERNAL AUDIT - INFORMING THE RISK ASSESSMENT
(Agenda Item 6)

The purpose of the report was to contribute towards the effective two-way 
communication between auditors and the Council's Audit and Regulatory 
Committee.  Management responses to questions were provided in the 
report which councillors were invited to scrutinise. Evidence and limited 
number of operating leases were considered.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

20/36 ACCOUNTING POLICY AMENDMENTS
(Agenda Item 7)

The report sought approval to make changes to the Authority’s accounting 
policies.

RESOLVED:
That the following change to accounting policies be approved:

(a) The Accruals of Income and Expenditure policy has the 
‘minimum value’ in the following bullet point increased from 
£5,000 to £10,000:  ‘The resources available are concentrated 
on identifying and accruing individual transactions of £10,000 
and above.’ 
See page 102 of the Council’s 2018-19 Statement of 

Accounts: https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-

statement-of-accounts 

20/37 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
(Agenda Item 8)

The Committee considered the Council’s risk management arrangements in 
accordance with accepted good practice.  Risk Management would be 
included in future scrutiny reports.  Discussion took place on adoption of the 
Corporate Plan, risk register including supply chain failure, emergency 
planning and planned training.

RESOLVED:

That the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation / fruition plans 
summarised within Appendix A (strategic risks), Appendix B (operational 
risks), Appendix C (project risks) and Appendix D (opportunity risks) of the 
report be noted. 

Page 5

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts


Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 12 February 2020

20/38 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - PROGRESS AGAINST 2018/19 
ACTION PLAN
(Agenda Item 9)

Regulations required the Council to conduct a review each financial year of 
the effectiveness of its system of internal control and approve an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS).  The AGS Action Plan (Appendix 1 of the 
report) outlined the progress made against the required actions as at the 
end of December 2019. 

RESOLVED:

That the progress information contained within the report be noted.

20/39 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE
(Agenda Item 10)

The Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2019/20 was 
scrutinised in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management and 
generally accepted good practice.  Discussion took place on interest earned 
and the budget for borrowing costs.

RECOMMENDED:

That the Treasury Management position (as at 31st December 2019) be 
noted.

20/40 2020/21 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
(Agenda Item 11)

The purpose of the report was to allow members of the Committee to 
consider and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 
2020/21 to ensure that its capital and treasury activities for the next four 
years were affordable and properly managed.  Capital expenditure, the 
Council’s borrowing need, provision for debt repayment, investment 
position, operational boundary and ethical investing were discussed.

RECOMMENDED:

That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 
2020/21 be approved.

20/41 GDPR -ORAL UPDATE
(Agenda Item 14)

The Committee received an update on Data Protection. Internal and 
external audits, information governance framework, training and asset 
registers were outlined. Monitoring, risk, contracts and storage of 
information were discussed.

RESOLVED:  That the presentation be received with thanks.
Page 6



Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 12 February 2020

20/42 WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 15)

Consideration was given to the work programme for the Committee. 

RESOLVED:

That the Committee Work Programme be noted.

The meeting concluded at 8.15 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Monday, 13 July 2020

Decisions made under urgent powers following consultation with the Chair 
and Members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee

1. Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20

RESOLVED:

That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 is recommended to 
Council for approval.

2. Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2020/21

RESOLVED:

That the Council’s annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 be approved.

High Peak Borough Council

Page 9

Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: Annual Governance Statement 2019/20

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Acting Executive Director 
(Finance & Customer Services)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific 

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 Annual Governance Statement 
Framework
Appendix 2 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 Regulation 6 (1) (a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the 
Council to conduct a review each financial year of the effectiveness of its 
system of internal control and approve an Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS).

1.2 The statement needs to be prepared in accordance with proper practices in 
relation to accounts and must be approved in advance of the Council 
approving the statement of accounts. ‘Proper practices in relation to accounts’ 
relates to those accounting practices which are contained in a code of practice 
or other document which is identified for the purposes of this provision by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State. Such guidance is contained in the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework and guidance on ‘Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government’.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee approve the Annual Governance Statement 2019/20.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



3. Executive Summary

3.1 Guidance on the production of the AGS is contained within the 2016 edition of 
CIPFA/SOLACE’s ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
Framework’. The structure and framework for the production of the AGS is 
summarised in Appendix 1.

3.2 In essence, the Annual Governance Statement is the formal statement that 
recognises, records and publishes our governance arrangements as defined 
in the CIPFA/SOLACE framework. The AGS includes the following 
information:

 An acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound 
system of governance;

 the purpose of the governance framework;
 the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the 

governance arrangements;
 the process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 

effectiveness of the governance framework;
 the identification of any significant governance issues and any actions 

taken or proposed to address these issues.

3.3 The AGS is a key corporate document. The most senior officer (the Chief 
Executive) and the most senior Councillor (the Leader) have joint responsibility 
as signatories for its accuracy and completeness. As a corporate document 
the AGS should be owned by all senior officers and Councillors of the 
authority. The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the 
governance framework for which they are responsible. In order to achieve this 
they will need to rely on many sources of assurance, such as:

 Acting Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services);
 Acting Deputy Chief Executive  & Monitoring Officer;
 Heads of Service;
 Members;
 the Head of Audit;
 performance and risk management;
 third-parties eg. partnerships;
 external audit and other review agencies.

3.4 The production of the 2019/20 AGS has been undertaken in line with the 
CIPFA guidance. The process has been co-ordinated through a Corporate 
Governance Management Group containing the key officers who are given 
ultimate responsibility for drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the 
supporting evidence.

3.5 An analysis of the relevant assurances and supporting evidence has been 
undertaken to produce a fully compliant AGS for 2019/20. The AGS is 
attached at Appendix 2 for Councillors consideration and approval.

Page 12



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Annual Governance Statement is the formal statement that recognises, 
records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements as defined in 
the CIPFA/SOLACE framework and therefore helps to ensure our future 
financial resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for 
money.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 Approve the 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement (Recommended). The 
AGS will provide an accurate representation of the governance arrangements 
in place during the year whilst highlighting those areas where improvement is 
required. Compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 will be 
achieved.

5.2 Do not approve the 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement (Not 
Recommended). Compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
will not be achieved unless an amended version of the AGS is approved.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None.

6.2 Workforce

None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and 
Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

In resolving any issues that have arisen from the outcome of the AGS, it is 
anticipated that corrective action will be implemented within existing budgetary 
provision.

6.5 Legal

Inadequacies in governance arrangements, if not addressed, pose a litigation 
risk. The extent and nature of such risks will vary depending on the nature and 
extent of the deficiency and the resulting damage/loss (if relevant). However, 
the suggested action to be taken to address the governance weaknesses will 
assist greatly in minimising the risks and potential legal implications identified.

Page 13



6.6 Climate Change

None.

6.7 Consultation

Key officers who are given ultimate responsibility for drafting the AGS, 
evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence have been consulted in 
the compilation process.

6.8 Risk Assessment

The AGS takes assurance from the Council’s Risk Management Framework.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Acting Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

CIPFA/SOLACE Publication – Delivering Good 
Governance In Local Government: Framework and 
Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016 Editions

Claire Hazeldene
Acting Executive Director (Finance & 
Customer Services)
claire.hazeldene@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6.4

Page 14

mailto:claire.hazeldene@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


7. Detail

7.1 Introduction

7.1.1 During 2016, CIPFA/SOLACE produced a new Delivering Good Governance 
in Local Government Framework and Guidance Notes for English Authorities. 
The Framework defines the principles that should underpin the governance of 
the Council and provides a structure to help with our approach to governance. 
The Council should therefore test our governance structures and partnerships 
against the principles contained in the Framework by:

 reviewing existing governance arrangements;
 developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, 

including arrangements for ensuring ongoing effectiveness; 
 reporting publicly on compliance with our code on an annual basis and on 

how we have monitored the effectiveness of our governance arrangements 
in the year and on planned changes. 

7.1.2 The Framework outlines seven core principles of good governance as follows:

 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the rule of law;

 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;
 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 

environmental benefits;
 Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 

the intended outcomes;
 Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it;
 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management;
 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to 

deliver effective accountability.

7.1.3 To achieve good governance, each local authority should be able to 
demonstrate that its governance structures comply with the core and sub-
principles contained in the Framework. Each Authority should therefore 
develop and maintain a local code of governance / governance arrangements 
reflecting the principles set out in the Framework. 

7.1.4 Local Authorities are required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement in 
order to report publicly on the extent to which they comply with their own code 
of governance, which in turn, is consistent with the good governance principles 
in the Framework. It is this statement that has the legal backing of Regulation 
6 (2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. HPBC’s current Code of 
Corporate Governance which forms part of the ethical framework of the 
Council, complies with the requirements of the framework and reflects the 
format of the most recent guidance.

Page 15



7.1.5 The arrangements required for gathering assurances for the preparation of the 
AGS provide an opportunity for authorities to consider the robustness of their 
governance arrangements.  In doing so, authorities need to recognise that this 
is a corporate issue, affecting everyone in the organisation.  It is also important 
to recognise that the purpose of the AGS is not just to be ‘compliant’, but also 
to provide an accurate representation of the arrangements in place during the 
year and to highlight those areas where improvement is required. This will also 
demonstrate to stakeholders what those arrangements are.

7.1.6 Once the AGS has been produced it is required to be reviewed and approved 
by an independent review body of the Council as a separate item from the 
Statement of Accounts. The purpose of this report is to present the 2019/20 
AGS to the members of the Audit & Regulatory Committee for consideration 
and approval.

7.2 Compilation of the AGS

7.2.1 In drafting the AGS, it is essential to bear in mind its purposes. In essence, the 
AGS is the formal statement that recognises, records and publishes the 
Council’s governance arrangements as defined in the CIPFA/SOLACE 
framework. The flowchart detailed at Appendix 1 sets out the framework for 
compiling the AGS. It identifies some typical dynamics of an AGS that should 
be considered and shows how they can be brought together and evidenced.

7.2.2 The AGS is a key corporate document. The most senior officer (the Chief 
Executive) and the most senior Councillor (the Leader) have joint responsibility 
as signatories for the accuracy and completeness of the AGS. The signatories 
need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the governance framework for 
which they are responsible. In order to achieve this they are likely to rely on 
many sources of assurance, such as:

 The Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer - the statutory 
functions undertaken by these two officers provide a key source of 
assurance that the systems and procedures of internal control that are in 
operation are effective, efficient and are being complied with on a routine 
basis. Both officers are involved in the production of the AGS.

 Management – Senior managers are charged with the responsibility of 
ensuring that policies within their service area are complied with and are 
held accountable for their actions/operations in delivering the service and 
achieving objectives. All Directors and Heads of Service were asked to 
complete and sign a Managers Assurance Statement to document the level 
of assurance that they could give for the internal controls in place in their 
service area and their effectiveness with regard to ensuring accountability, 
prudence, VFM, data quality, compliance with policy, Financial Regulations 
and Procedure Rules, Contract Procedure Rules and delivery of the 
Council’s objectives. In providing this assurance, Directors and Heads of 
Service were asked to identify any material issues where they consider the 
controls are not adequate or are absent. In providing such assurance 
statements it is accepted that Managers can only be expected to give 

Page 16



reasonable assurance for their service area of activity and not a full 
guarantee.

 Internal Audit - The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) defines 
Internal Audit as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting 
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It 
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.” Internal Audit produces 
an annual report that gives a summary of its work and provides an 
independent and objective opinion on the authority’s activities. The annual 
report and the work of Internal Audit have been used to inform the AGS. A 
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit has been 
undertaken to ensure that reliance can be placed on the work of internal 
audit and its contribution to the AGS.

 Risk Management – the Council’s strategic risk register details those 
issues considered to be a risk which may prevent the Council from 
achieving its corporate objectives and outlines the controls in place to 
mitigate those risks. This source of assurance has been used to inform the 
AGS.

 External Audit and Other Review Agencies – assurance can be taken from 
the work of external bodies such as the Council’s external auditors. Work 
undertaken by the external auditors has been used to inform the Annual 
Governance Statement.

7.2.3 As a corporate document the AGS should be owned by all senior officers and 
Councillors of the authority.  It is essential that there is a buy-in at the top level 
of the organisation; otherwise there is a risk that the preparation of the AGS is 
not perceived as the important task that it is by managers and other staff. If the 
work is delegated to a single officer it is likely to dilute the statement’s 
significance.

7.2.4 At the centre of the production of the 2019/20 statement is a Corporate 
Governance Management Group who are given ultimate responsibility for 
drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence and this 
group has been established for a number of years. Each member of the group 
has supplied assurances and evidence to support the various elements of the 
AGS and action points to address weaknesses, some of which are significant 
and warrant specific mention in the AGS itself, have been drawn up.

7.3 The Statement

7.3.1 The assurances and evidence have been evaluated and the AGS, prepared in 
accordance with recommended guidance, is attached as Appendix 2. The 
statement is structured as follows: -

 An acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound 
system of governance;

 the purpose of the governance framework;

Page 17



 the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the 
governance arrangements;

 the process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 
effectiveness of the governance framework;

 the identification of any significant governance issues and any actions 
taken or proposed to address these issues.

7.3.2 In compiling an AGS, issues that are considered to fall short of the expected 
standards (whether or not set out in the organisation’s local code of corporate 
governance) could arise.  In this case a decision needs to be made about how 
significant the issue is and whether or not it needs to be commented on in the 
Statement. It is not possible to give a single definition as to what constitutes a 
“significant governance issue” and judgement has to be exercised. 
Judgements are therefore based on the following factors:-

 the issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal 
objective;

 the issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be 
resolved, or has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another 
service area;

 the issue has led to a material impact on the accounts;
 the Head of Audit has reported on it as significant, for this purpose, in the 

Internal Audit Annual Report;
 the issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has the 

potential to seriously damage the reputation of the Council;
 the issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial 

Officer and/or Monitoring Officer.

7.3.3 The 2018/19 AGS contained three significant internal control issues, two of 
which have been satisfactorily addressed during 2019/20 (see 7.3.4 below). 
As there is no further action required on these issues, they have therefore 
been omitted from the 2019/20 AGS. One further significant issue highlighted 
in the 2018/19 AGS has not been fully addressed during the year as this is still 
ongoing and is therefore included again within the 2019/20 AGS as a 
significant issue, together with two new significant issues highlighted during 
the assurance process for 2019/20.

7.3.4 The table below details the significant governance issues that remain at the 
end of 2019/20 together with the action that was and is being taken to address 
these issues:

Governance Issue Action taken during
2019/20

Continuing Action

The implications of the 
central government reforms 
of housing finance.

 As part of the Housing 
Revenue Account 
business plan, the action 
plan has been 
implemented within the 
agreed time scales.

 None

Page 18



Governance Issue Action taken during
2019/20

Continuing Action

There has been a change in 
the operating model for the 
Council’s waste collection, 
fleet management, street 
cleansing and grounds 
maintenance services.

 The street cleansing and 
grounds maintenance 
services have been 
transferred to the Teckal 
company which is now 
fully operational.

 None

The significant investment 
requirements for a number 
of the Council’s non-housing 
properties.

 The agreed investment 
programme to ensure 
the Council’s assets 
remain fit for purpose 
has continued to be 
implemented and a 
programme of refreshed 
condition surveys was 
commenced during 
2019/20.

 A programme of 
refreshed condition 
surveys was 
commenced in 2019/20 
and will continue during 
2020/21 to enable the 
prioritisation of further 
work.

Achievement of Corporate 
Objectives due to Covid-19 
pandemic.

 The potential impact of 
the Covid-19 pandemic 
on the Council’s ability 
to achieve its Corporate 
Objectives is still being 
assessed at the time of 
publication.

 Recovery plans are 
being developed to 
address any issues 
arising from the Covid-
19 pandemic that affect 
the Council’s ability to 
achieve its Corporate 
Objectives.

Affect on the Council’s 
governance arrangements 
following the departure of 
Alliance Leadership Team 
members.

 The Executive Director 
(Transformation) has 
been appointed as Chief 
Executive and the 
Deputy Director and 
Head of Finance has 
taken on the role of 
Acting Executive 
Director (Finance & 
Customer Services). 
Temporary management 
arrangements have 
therefore been put in 
place to ensure effective 
continuity of services.

 Further work is ongoing 
to identify any 
improvements that are 
required to Council 
Governance Policies & 
Procedures and 
management reporting 
arrangements. 

7.3.5 The significant issues identified in the 2019/20 AGS highlight weaknesses in 
the Council’s governance framework. If these issues are not addressed then 
the Council could be facing a range of risks including, in a worst case 
scenario, breaches of legislation, breaches of internal procedures/guidelines, 
financial losses, insurance claims, etc. The actions identified for each 
significant issue will, if implemented, minimise the risks faced by the Council. 
No system of review can give full assurance that all risks have been minimised 
and all controls have been operating effectively throughout the year, only 
reasonable assurance can be given.

7.3.6 Progress in addressing the governance issues identified and outlined during 
the AGS assurance gathering process, both significant and non-significant, 
and their required actions will be monitored by the Corporate Governance 
Management Group during the following financial year and reported to the 
Audit & Regulatory Committee.

Page 19



7.3.7 Following publication of the Draft Annual Governance Statement at the end of 
August 2020, an additional paragraph under ‘Review of Effectiveness – chief 
financial officer’ (highlighted in red) has been added to reflect the Council’s 
joint venture partnership with Ansa. This followed a recommendation by the 
Committee for Standards in Public Life in their recent ethical standards review.

Page 20



APPENDIX 1

Authority & 
Directorate Policies, 
Business Plans and 

Risk Registers

Annual Governance
Statement

Framework - Key documents/process guidelines 
• Performance management
• Business strategy and planning process
• Budget and budgetary control
• Local code of corporate governance
• Project management/  Risk Management / counter Fraud 

Policy
• Ethical Governance
• Policies, procedures, codes of conduct
• Partnership protocol

Approval by Committee or by 
members of body meeting as a whole

Corporate Group with 
responsibility for drafting 
AGS evaluate assurances 
and supporting evidence

Ongoing assurance on adequacy and
effectiveness of controls over key risks

Assurances by 
directors/servi

ce heads

Financial  
control 

assurance

Other sources 
of assurance

(including 
third-party)

External Audit Risk 
Management

Performance 
Management & 

Data Quality

Internal Audit Members’ 
assurance

Review of the 
effectiveness of the 

system of 
Internal Audit

Legal and
Regulatory 
 Assurance

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FRAMEWORK

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5

APPENDIX 2

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019-20

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

High Peak Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. High Peak Borough Council also 
has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, High Peak Borough Council is responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its 
functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

High Peak Borough Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government. A copy of the code is on our website at www.highpeak.gov.uk or can be 
obtained from the Executive Director & Monitoring Officer. This statement explains how High Peak 
Borough Council has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of Accounts and 
Audit (England) Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1)(b), which requires all relevant authorities to 
prepare an annual governance statement.

THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which 
the authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with 
and leads its communities. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic 
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services 
and value for money.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk 
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives 
and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The 
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the 
risks to the achievement of High Peak Borough Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate 
the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at High Peak Borough Council for the year ended 31 
March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. 

THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

High Peak Borough Council has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance in accordance 
with the core principles of good governance outlined within the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government Framework 2016.

There are seven core principles of good governance identified in the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 as follows:

Page 23

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/


Page 2 of 5

 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting 
the rule of law.

 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits.
 Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the intended 

outcomes.
 Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals 

within it.
 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 

management.
 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective 

accountability.

Further detail of how the High Peak Borough Council’s governance framework supports the 
achievement of these core principles and their related sub-principles is outlined in the Council’s 
Code of Corporate Governance.

Where significant governance issues are identified they are clearly highlighted in this statement 
together with actions that are taken during the year and future actions proposed to minimise the 
risks to the Council. Progress in addressing significant governance issues identified and their 
required actions are monitored by the Corporate Governance Management Group during the 
following financial year and reported to the Audit & Regulatory Committee.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

High Peak Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of 
Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other 
review agencies and inspectorates. 

The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the 
governance framework is ongoing throughout the year and includes:

 the authority;

 The ongoing review of the Council’s Constitution by Councillors and Senior Officers of the 
Council via the Constitution Sub Committee.

 The ongoing review of existing corporate policies and production and approval of new or 
revised policies and procedures in accordance with best practice.

 The Annual Governance Statement process incorporates a review of the local Code of 
Corporate Governance against CIPFA/SOLACE best practice to ensure that the Council’s 
approach to corporate governance is both adequate and effective in practice.

 the executive;

 The continued operation of clear policy and decision making through the Executive and 
Regulatory Committees.

Page 24



Page 3 of 5

 the audit committee/overview and scrutiny committees/risk management committee;

 The Audit & Regulatory Committee’s composition and terms of reference are based upon 
CIPFA guidance and include reviewing the work of the Internal Audit service and any 
implications arising from their findings and opinion on the adequacy of internal controls and 
the adequacy of policies and practices to ensure compliance with statutory and other 
guidance. The Committee are also responsible for overseeing production of the Council’s 
Annual Governance Statement, and to review and recommend/approve its adoption as 
necessary.

 Formal reporting mechanisms to councillors to review and monitor the work of the Internal 
Audit Service through quarterly reports to Audit & Regulatory Committee, including an 
annual report to Audit & Regulatory Committee containing an opinion statement on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. For 
2019/20, Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance that the Council’s governance 
arrangements including risk management and systems of internal control were operating 
adequately and effectively.

 The continued development and embedding of a risk management culture within the 
Council driven by the corporate Risk Management Group including reviewing the Council’s 
risk register and associated action plans and ensuring that appropriate management action 
is taken to minimise / eliminate risk. Risk Management updates are reported to the Audit & 
Regulatory Committee and the Risk Management Strategy is reviewed biennially.

 The Select Committees review decisions made by the Executive and areas of concern and 
also fulfil a policy development role. Councillors can “call-in” a decision that has been made 
by the Executive when they consider the decision is not in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution.

 the Standards Committee;

 The Committee is responsible for the ethical framework of the Council, working closely with 
the monitoring officer. The terms of reference include advising councillors on conduct 
issues and ensuring the promotion and maintenance of the highest standards of conduct by 
elected and co-opted members of the Council.

 chief financial officer;

 The CFO is a key member of the “Alliance Leadership Team” (ALT) and “Alliance 
Management Team” (AMT), which are the most senior officer bodies charged with the 
leadership of the Council. That role includes helping to develop and implement strategy and 
to resource and deliver the Council’s strategic objectives sustainably and in the public 
interest.

 The CFO is actively involved in and able to bring influence to bear on, all material business 
decisions to ensure the immediate and longer term implications, opportunities and risks are 
considered, and alignment with the Council’s overall financial strategy achieved.

 High Peak Borough Councils financial management arrangements conform to the 
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer 
in Local Government.

 The Council, along with Alliance partner Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, agreed to 
establish a joint venture partnership with Ansa - a subsidiary of Cheshire East Council - to 
deliver waste collection, street cleaning, grounds maintenance and fleet management 

Page 25



Page 4 of 5

services. The collaborative arrangement has been assessed to be a joint operation and 
therefore is consolidated into the single entity financial statements of High Peak Borough 
Council.

 internal audit;

 Internal Audit review services and functions based on a risk assessed audit plan, in order to 
provide an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. Audit reports detailing the findings of each review are issued to Heads of 
Service, the Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer and where appropriate, the 
Executive Director & Monitoring Officer and Chief Executive.

 Audit recommendations for improvements require management agreement, and 
implementation is monitored and escalated in accordance with formally agreed escalation 
procedures. Regular updates on audit recommendation agreement and implementation are 
reported to the Audit & Regulatory Committee.

 The Authority’s internal audit arrangements conform to the requirements of the CIPFA 
Statement of the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. Internal Audit operates in accordance 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The service is subject to regular review by 
the Council’s External Auditors who place reliance on their work. An annual review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal audit is also undertaken and an independent external 
review previously concluded that the internal audit provision within the Council complies 
with the expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

 other explicit review/assurance mechanisms;

 The Council operates a performance framework which is aligned to the Council’s four key 
aims and measures performance against indicators and actions that are focused on the 
delivery of corporate objectives.

 The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer produces quarterly and annual financial 
reports which indicate financial performance against forecasts.

 Directors and Heads of Service complete and sign annual Managers Assurance 
Statements confirming their arrangements for ensuring data quality and the existence, 
operation and effectiveness of controls within the service areas for which they are 
responsible

 External review of the Council’s internal control environment by the external auditors Grant 
Thornton, including a review of internal audit’s work.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the 
governance framework by the Audit & Regulatory Committee, and that the arrangements continue 
to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The areas already 
addressed and those to be specifically addressed with new actions planned are outlined below.

OPINION

The review of the effectiveness of the governance framework show that the arrangements continue 
to be fit for purpose and reasonable assurance can be given that the framework is operating 
adequately in practice. No review can provide absolute assurance; this statement is intended to 
provide reasonable assurance that there is an ongoing process for reviewing the governance 
framework and its operation in practice.

Page 26



Page 5 of 5

Whilst the governance framework is considered to be adequate, any issues deemed to be 
significant that need to be addressed to further enhance the Council’s governance arrangements 
are outlined below with the actions to be taken.

SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES

During the 2019/20 financial year three significant governance issues have been identified. These 
are detailed in the table below together with the action that was and is being taken to address the 
issue:

Governance Issue Action taken during
2019/20

Continuing Action

The significant investment 
requirements for a number of the 
Council’s non-housing properties.

 The agreed investment 
programme to ensure the 
Council’s assets remain fit for 
purpose has continued to be 
implemented and a 
programme of refreshed 
condition surveys was 
commenced during 2019/20.

 A programme of refreshed 
condition surveys was 
commenced in 2019/20 and 
will continue during 2020/21 
to enable the prioritisation of 
further work.

Achievement of Corporate 
Objectives due to Covid-19 
pandemic.

 The potential impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic on the 
Council’s ability to achieve its 
Corporate Objectives is still 
being assessed at the time of 
publication.

 Recovery plans are being 
developed to address any 
issues arising from the Covid-
19 pandemic that affect the 
Council’s ability to achieve its 
Corporate Objectives.

Affect on the Council’s 
governance arrangements 
following the departure of 
Alliance Leadership Team 
members.

 The Executive Director 
(Transformation) has been 
appointed as Chief Executive 
and the Deputy Director and 
Head of Finance has taken 
on the role of Acting 
Executive Director (Finance 
& Customer Services). 
Temporary management 
arrangements have therefore 
been put in place to ensure 
effective continuity of 
services.

 Further work is ongoing to 
identify any improvements 
that are required to Council 
Governance Policies & 
Procedures and management 
reporting arrangements. 

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance 
our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for 
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their 
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed: 

…………………………………………………… ……...November 2020………

Councillor Anthony McKeown
Leader           Date 

…………………………………………………… ……...November 2020………

Andrew P Stokes BA (Hons) MBA CPFA MCIH CIMSPA
Chief Executive           Date 

on behalf of High Peak Borough Council

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

24th November 2020

Appendix A: High Peak Draft Statement of Accounts (separate document using 
link:) https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts

Appendix B Attached: Chief Finance Officer Review of Accounts

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To allow for scrutiny of the draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 in compliance 
with the legislative provisions in relation to financial reporting and the 
Council’s commitment to transparency and accountability in the stewardship 
of public funds.  

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Members approve the audited Statement of Accounts 2019/20.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Corporate Director & Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the Council’s financial statements. These, prepared in 
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom (‘the Code of Practice’) and based on 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), are required to present ‘a 
true and fair view’ of the financial position of the Council at the accounting 
date (period ended 31st March 2020). 

TITLE:  Statement of Accounts 2019/20

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Keith Pointon – Head of Finance

Stephen Robinson – Principal Finance Officer 
(Financial Reporting)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-specific

Page 29

Agenda Item 6

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts


3.2 Part 2, Section 8(2) of The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 
state that the Chief Finance Officer signs the Statement of Accounts by 31st 
May each year certifying that the accounts represent a ‘true and fair view’ of 
the Authority’s financial position. Owing to the Covid 19 pandemic, this 
deadline was lifted and the authority released its draft statements on 13th July 
2020.

3.3 In response to the Covid 19 pandemic, the new deadline for publication for the 
final, audited accounts is 30 November 2020 (normally 31 July). The formal 
public inspection period was also delayed and commenced on the 7th 
September for 15 working days.

3.4 Covid 19 has also directly impacted the Statements by increasing significantly 
the level of uncertainty included in the assumptions behind the estimated 
values reported by the Authority. The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet 
at 31 March 2020 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in 
the forthcoming financial year are asset valuations and pension liability.

3.5 Members’ are asked to approve the audited Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
(see Appendix A https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-
accounts for draft accounts).   In doing so, the Chair of the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee will sign the accounts at this meeting (subject to the external audit 
being completed at that point).  

3.6 By formally approving the Accounts, the Audit & Regulatory Committee will be 
demonstrating their confidence in the responsible financial officer (Executive 
Director & Chief Finance Officer) and in the process by which the Statement 
of Accounts has been prepared.  The accounts have been externally audited 
by Grant Thornton and they will set out their opinion and findings within the 
Audit Findings Report presented as part of this meeting.

3.7 In order to assist Members with their scrutiny role, a training session was 
delivered on 18th June 2019 which included a bite-size briefing session 
relating to the Statement of Accounts.  A further, more detailed training 
session may be organised in due course in response to the Audit Committee 
skills assessment to be undertaken.

3.8 To further aid Members, Appendix B provides the Chief Finance Officer 
review which challenges some of the more material financial movements 
compared to the previous year and requests further clarification on certain 
areas.  

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1 The preparation of the Statement of Accounts is dictated by legislation. As 
such it is not directly linked to a corporate priority, although the Council is 
firmly committed to the guiding principle of transparency and accountability in 
the stewardship of public funds.   

Page 30

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts


5. Options and Analysis

5.1 The Statement of Accounts is primarily a record of fact. Areas of discretion 
are treated in accordance with guidance and professional judgement.  
Consequently, there are no real options to consider.

5.2 The Statement of Accounts have been subject to external audit by Grant 
Thornton. 

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are a substantial number of financial considerations throughout the 
Statement of Accounts.

6.5 Legal  
There are a number of legal requirements in respect of financial reporting that 
the Council is required to comply with, which are detailed in the appropriate 
sections within the Statement of Accounts. 

6.6 Climate Change  

None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 require the Statement of Accounts 
and supporting documents to be made available for public inspection for 30 
full working days prior to the ‘appointed date for exercise of public rights’.  
Owing to Covid 19 authorities were granted an extension and flexibility in 
ensuring the public could exercise this right. The council gave formal 
notification to the public of a 15 working day period commencing 7th 
September.

6.8 Risk Assessment
There are a number of areas of risk embedded throughout the Statement of 
Accounts. These have been individually addressed and treated in accordance 
with guidance and professional judgement.

Page 31



Claire Hazeldene

Acting Executive Directors (Finance & Customer Services)

Background Papers Contacts
2019/20 Closure of Accounts files 
(various)

Keith Pointon                          
Acting Head of Finance                           
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Stephen Robinson            
Principal Finance Officer 
(Financial Reporting)                   
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4194

Sharon Hall                        
Finance Business Partner            
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4246

Page 32



Appendix B

High Peak Statement of Accounts 2019/20 – Chief 
Finance Officer Review

1. Please provide the most significant reasons for the 2019/20 operating surplus of £295,441 
(General Fund) and £2,114,450 (HRA)

The explanations for the variances contributing to the overall underspend are reported within 
the Quarter Four (Provisional Outturn) Financial Report reported to Committee in July 2020.

The most significant reasons relate to:-

GENERAL FUND
 External Funding – £163,000 lower than budgeted as the level of S31 grants received to 

support Government Business Rates initiatives were below expectations.
 Net underspend on various service areas more than offset the shortfall in income 

reported above. The largest contributor being Corporate Finance with an underspend 
against the establishment budget and an overachievement of savings from the efficiency   
programme which together totalled £460,000.

HRA
 Additional Income – improvements to void turnarounds and increased income from 

service charges were responsible for a £184,000 positive variance.
 Contribution to Capital – a £1.8million underspend against the original budget reflects a 

£0.2million saving owing to delays in schemes and a £1.6million downward revision of 
the capital programme. 

 Supervision and Management - a large proportion of a £269,000 underspend relates to 
savings in salary and corporate costs

2. On page 65 within the Pension notes, there is reference to the McCloud judgement which 
has been an issue potentially affecting the valuation of the council’s pension liability for a 
number of years now. Previously this has been recorded as narrative only with no 
amendments to the actual figures.   However, there have been developments in relation to 
this, can you please briefly explain the current position?

There has been considerable discussion in regard to the McCloud ruling on age 
discrimination.  In summary, the Court of Appeal has ruled that there was age discrimination 
in the judges and firefighters pension schemes where transitional protections were given to 
scheme members. The Government has applied to the Supreme Court for permission to 
appeal but are awaiting a decision on whether permission is granted. The legal ruling around 
age discrimination (McCloud - Court of Appeal) has implications not just for pension funds, 
but also for other pension schemes where they have implemented transitional arrangements 
on changing benefits. Adjustment was incorporated into the 2018/19 Statements to reflect 
the estimated impacts of McCloud on the Pension Fund. During the summer Government 
announced a period of consultation on the proposed McCloud remedy. The actuary 
evaluated the contents of the proposal and concluded that the provision made in the 
2018/19 assessments was likely overstated

Following discussions with Grant Thornton, we requested revised IAS19 reports from the 
actuary to reflect the impact of the proposed McCloud remedy on the Fund. The impact on 
the IAS19 report is listed below: 

Page 33



• McCloud judgment - £227k decrease in past service cost.

This revaluation has produced what can be considered a more realistic valuation of the 
Council’s pension liability reflecting the best estimate, based on latest available data, and 
therefore in line with CIPFA and NAO guidance.  This adjustment did however necessitate a 
number of late changes to the primary statements and notes. 

3. Can you please explain the movement between years on the following lines on the Balance 
Sheet (highlighted yellow):-

31st March 
2019 

£000's

31st March 
2020   £000's

Variance 
>£400k

233,929 Property, Plant & Equipment 237,790 3,861
391 Heritage Assets 391 0

1,137 Investment Properties 1,028 (109)
38 Intangible Assets 102 64

199 Long-term Debtors 292 93
235,694 TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 239,603 3,909

6,182 Short-term Investments 10,681 4,499
56 Inventories 65 9

3,713 Short Term Debtors 2,472 (1,241)
8,719 Cash & Cash Equivalents 10,003 1,284

18,670 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 23,221 4,551
0 Cash & Cash Equivalents 0 0
0 Short-term Borrowings 0 0

(7,127) Short-term Creditors (9,452) (2,325)
(1,547) Provisions (1,734) (187)
(8,674) TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (11,186) (2,512)

(67,130) Long-term Borrowing (67,129) 1
(50,974) Pensions Liability (33,409) 17,565

(47) Deferred Liabilities (22) 25
(267) Grant Receipts in Advance - Capital (348) (81)

(118,418) TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES (100,908) 17,510
127,272 TOTAL NET ASSETS 150,730 23,458

24,813 Useable Reserves 27,714 2,901
102,459 Unusable Reserves 123,016 20,557
127,272 TOTAL RESERVES 150,730 23,458

Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital Spend £6.7m, including £2.9m re AES vehicles offset by capital spend derecognised, annual 
depreciation charge and asset disposals.
Short Term Investments; Short Term Debtors; Short-Term Creditors
These 3 headings plus in other years Cash & Cash Equivalents together with Short and Long Term 
Borrowings, represent how the Authority’s overall working capital is invested or committed at the year 
end.  When compared in total between years they show a £2.2m increase between years.  This is all 
but accounted for by a £1.7m receipt at the year end of Rates Support grants to be applied in 
2020/21.

Page 34



Pension Liability
Reflects change in actuarial valuation which this year takes account of the latest full valuation of the 
scheme dated 31st March 2019.  These detailed valuations recalibrate the fund every three years.
Useable Reserves
Increase in level of capital receipts from asset sales and capital grants received in year and not used 
to fund capital expenditure of £0.9m.  Increase in level of HRA balances £2.1m offset by net use of 
General Fund reserves of £0.1m.
Unusable Reserves
Actuary's year end valuation reduced the Debit balance on the Pension Reserve by £17.6m.  There 
has also been a reduction in the liability carried in relation to non current assets with revaluations etc 
reducing by £3m the net balance of the Revaluation Reserve and Capital Adjustment Account.

This overall results in an increase in the net worth of the Authority of £23.458million.

4. On the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (page 39) there are a number of 
significant variations between years in net costs.  Can you please provide an explanation for 
the following;

Property Services (£991k increase) – This relates to Nominal Capital Charges some £800k 
more than in 2018/19.  The most significant item being a £656k impairment of car parks.

Other Operating Expenditure (£3.35m decrease) - Note 3a breaks this figure down, and 
while it shows improved capital receipts of £1m it highlights an even more significant 
difference in ‘derecognition & disposal value of fixed assets’ - £6.975m in 18/19 compared to 
£3.972m in 2019/20.   This reflects that 2018/19 was distorted by the impact of the 
refurbishment of the Octagon at Pavilion Gardens where the costs incurred were 
derecognised to bring the carrying value of the asset in line with the year end valuation.

5. Page 95 presents the HRA Income & Expenditure Statement and shows some areas with 
significant variation from the previous year. Can you please provide an explanation for the 
following:

Depreciation and impairment (£2.7m increase) – This reflects the different treatment of 
revaluation gains and losses, as either charges to the Revaluation Reserve or to the HRA 
I&E, as dictated by accounting requirements. In 2018/19 there were no revaluation losses 
that resulted in a charge to the HRA (all went to the Revaluation Reserve) however in 
2019/20 £730k has been charged there. Additionally, 2018/19 saw a £1,843k gain charged 
back to the HRA because it reversed a previous loss that had been charged there.

Gain or Loss on the sale or disposal of non-current assets (£1m increased gain) - In 19/20 
we had 30 sales compared to 21 in 18/19 therefore an increase in the gains achieved on 
RTB sales (£300k). In 19/20 capital spend was less than in previous years therefore the 
write back of de-recognised components is lower than it was in 18/19 by £700k.

6. Overall borrowing (short-term and long-term) on the Balance Sheet (page 40) stands at 
£67.129million.  However, the capital financing requirement (note 6e – page 73) is 
£80.9million – this relates to capital expenditure which has not been funded (so the Council’s 
underlying need to borrow).  The Balance Sheet also shows useable reserves of 
£27.714million but only £20.7million in Cash and Short-Term Investments potentially 
showing that the Council is utilising internal resources to temporarily find capital expenditure 
rather than externally borrow.  Can you please provide a reconciliation showing the internal 
borrowing / any working capital implications?

Page 35



The table below restates the Balance Sheet in such a way as to highlight;
-          Capital Finance / Borrowing Requirement 80,952
-          External Borrowing (66,879)
                                               -         therefore under borrowing 14,073

-          Amounts available to invest (29,468)
-          invested externally 20,543

    -         therefore invested internally (8,815)
-          balance being the Council’s Working Capital 5,258

Table: Balance Sheet presented so as to highlight use and level of internal borrowing.

Capital Financing Requirement
Property Plant & Equipment 238,138
Investment properties 1,038
Intangible Assets 102
Capital Long Term Debtors 250
Revaluation Reserve (46,188)
Capital Adjustment Account (112,378)
CFR (as per Prudential Code) 80,952
Finance Lease Liability 0
Underlying Borrowing Requirement 80,952

External Borrowing
Short Term 0
Long Term (66,879)
TOTAL External Borrowing (Principal) (66,879)

 
Under (Over) Borrowing? 14,073 14,073

Reserves / Balances
General Fund Balance (2,842)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account (88)
Housing Revenue Account (16,565)
Earmarked reserves / other balances (2,850)
Capital Receipts Reserve (4,529)
Provisions (Exc any accumulated absences) (1,660)
Capital Grants Unapplied (828)
Amount Available for Investment (29,468)

Investments
Short Term 10,650
Cash & Cash Equivalents - in hand 10,003
Cash & Cash Equivalents - overdrawn 0
TOTAL Investments 20,653

(internal investments) (8,515) (8,515)
5,258

Working Capital
Debtors 2,252
Creditors (9,680)
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (348)
Inventories / WIP 65
NET Working Capital Deficit (Surplus) (7,711) (7,711)

Page 36



Other
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 2,161
Deferred Capital receipts 0
Balance Long Term debtors 292
Other Long Term Working Capital 2,453 2,453

TOTAL Working Capital Surplus (5,258) (5,258)

7. Can you please briefly explain the reason for the restatement of the 2018/19 figures in some 
of the core statements and notes

The statements and notes include comparative figures from the previous financial year. If 
there have been material changes in the way that the financial information is collated and 
presented in the current year, the prior year must be manipulated to allow a like for like 
comparison and marked as ‘Restated’.

 During the course of 2019/20 the Council’s Planning Service took over responsibility 
for Local Plans from Regeneration and Arboriculture from Horticulture. While neither 
of these changes would necessarily be classed as having a material impact on the 
financial information disclosed in the Statements it was considered useful to the 
reader to reflect these changes in comparative data. This necessitated the 
restatement of a number of tables as detailed in Note 17.

8. In simple terms – can you explain what note 5 is showing the reader? 

The Statement of Accounts are produced in accordance with statutory guidance as to what 
is reported in each individual Statement.  Two underlying principles to this guidance are;

- Full Costing (Accounting Basis) – the figures reported in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement (CIES) should include all elements of cost not just cash 
backed transactions such as payment of suppliers and income received from clients.  
So, for instance, nominal charges are made to services for the use of assets such as 
buildings or for the liability to pay the future pensions of their staff.

- Fair Charging (Funding Basis) – those paying for the services (through taxation or 
fees and charges) should only have to cover those costs considered legitimately 
chargeable to the accounting period.  So while the nominal charges in relation to the 
use of assets or pension liability reflect a longer term commitment the actual costs 
chargeable to the year should only record cash backed transactions.

In order to satisfy these competing principles the Statements include a mechanism that 
records the nominal charges against services in the CIES and then replaces them with the 
amounts considered legitimately chargeable to the year.  The Authority’s Balance Sheet 
includes a number of Unusable Reserve Accounts that hold the long term liability for the 
nominal charges.  These accounts are used to record and carry forward the cumulative 
difference between the nominal charges made to services and the actual amounts. The 
Movement in Reserves Statement summarises and Note 5 details the transactions moving 
between the CIES reported outturn and the Unusable Reserves to replace nominal with 
actual. 

9. Can you explain the overall surplus on the Collection Fund? 

Page 37



The Collection Fund is an account that the Council, as the billing authority for council tax and 
business rates, has to maintain to record the difference between the tax distributed and 
collectable in the year.  By collectable we mean that it is based on what should have been 
not what was collected i.e. it takes no account of arrears and prepayments.  It also records 
the amounts paid to precepting authorities, including the Borough, and Central Government 
in line with the precepts set at the beginning of the financial year.  The difference between 
these precepts and the collectable amount is the surplus or deficit at the year end.  This 
surplus or deficit is estimated prior to the year-end and is then paid to or recovered from all 
the preceptors in the following year.

The precepts were set against a predicted collectable amount in January 2019.  During 
2019/20 the actual collectable amounts would have been affected by changes in:

- - the number of taxable homes and premises
- - the granting or cessation of discounts or reliefs
- - changes in the banding of houses or rateable value of buildings
- - statutory changes such as the introduction of new reliefs and discounts

The Collection Fund is showing an overall surplus of £0.389m (£0.211m council tax surplus 
and £0.178m business rates surplus) of which the Council’s share is £108k (£25k council tax 
surplus and £63k business rates surplus).

Substantial in-year surpluses or deficits can arise from variations in the factors listed above.  
During 2019/20 the take from Council Tax has exceeded that anticipated back in January 
2019.  In January 2020, when the 2020/21 budget was being compiled, a surplus was 
anticipated with £73,210 being set for distribution in the current year.

10. Can you please provide more information on the more significant ‘other earmarked 
reserves’ (total £1.1m) as stated in Note 11 Useable Reserves?

  In summary, the balances are made up of:-

Service Area
Balance as 

at 31st 
March 2020

Description

Housing £515,000 Homeless support grant

Benefits £111,000 Benefit reform, economic downturn

Communities £88,000 Community safety, community initiatives

Regeneration £109,000 Custom build grant, Brownfield regeneration, Future High 
Streets

Corporate £145,000 Toddbrook

Leisure & 
Countryside

£63,000 Sports activity, S106 maintenance etc

Other £65,000 EU exit preparation, Individual Electoral Registration

Page 38



11. Are there any major risks to the authority indicated in the accounts?  If so, how are these 
being dealt with?

Narrative Report (page 2):  goes in to some detail about the effect of Covid 19 on the 
figures reported in the Statements as well as its potential impact on the financial standing of 
the council in the medium to long term. It also touches upon the level of funding that is now 
raised and retained locally as opposed to being provided by Central Government.  These 
two issues make us vulnerable to both national and local economic factors.

Countered by robust budgetary control and the maintenance of adequate reserves both 
earmarked to support particular activities and as a contingency against unplanned changes 
in income and expenditure.  Usable reserves have increased from £24.8m to £27.7m, 
including at £2.3m a contingency reserve that is some £1.5m above the value considered 
prudent.

Balance Sheet and Capital Notes (page 40 and page 68):  lists the extensive assets of 
the Authority.  Assets such as these can become individual or collective liabilities if not 
adequately maintained.

Countered by an Asset Management Plan that ensures capital resources are focused on 
maintaining the structural integrity and value of property assets.

Pension Notes (page 60):  highlights the pension liability of £33m, valuation of which is 
based on the value of Corporate Bonds.  

This risk to the medium/long term viability of the Authority is countered by measures 
adopted by local government pension schemes to increase contributions and reduce 
entitlements over the medium to long term.

Financial Instrument Notes (page 82):  Include a comprehensive analysis of the various 
risks around the value of all financial assets including cash, receivables and investments.

Countered by the Authority’s budgetary control and treasury management procedures.  
Realistic budgeting is supported by robust risk adverse borrowing and investment 
strategies.

Contingent Liabilities Note (page 90):  Highlights a number of areas where there may be 
a future call on the Council’s resources if certain actions or events materialise.

These items are monitored as part of the Authority’s financial planning process. Future 
budgets can if necessary be amended in response to any liability materialising.  There are 
operating reserves available to ameliorate the impact on other services in any particular 
year.

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: Redmond Review Briefing Report

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow -  Executive Councillor 
for Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Stephen Robinson – Principal Finance Officer 
(Financial Reporting)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non specific

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 – Redmond Review Briefing Note

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the Redmond review into external audit 
and governance and to detail its significant findings, conclusions and 
recommendations

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Members of the Audit Committee note the report

3. Executive Summary

3.1 In June 2019, Sir Anthony Redmond was tasked by government to undertake 
an independent review of the effectiveness of local audit and its ability to 
demonstrate accountability for audit performance to the public. It also 
considered whether the current means of reporting an Authority’s annual 
accounts enables the public to understand this financial information and 
receive the appropriate assurance that the finances of the authority are sound.

3.2 His findings were published in September 2020 - “Independent Review into the 
Oversight of Local Audit and the Transparency of Local Authority Financial 
Reporting”.
The review gathered evidence, drew conclusions and made recommendations 
around three key areas across the public sector;

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



 Audit Performance – are outcomes adequate? 

 Governance Arrangements – is the quality of consideration and 
management of audit reports by authorities sufficient to ensure overall 
accountability?

 Financial Reporting – Do current practices relating to the annual 
publication of financial information support accountability.

3.3 This report summarises the process undertaken, evidence collected and the 
conclusions and recommendations that Sir Anthony Redmond has proposed.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of financial 
and other resources to ensure value for money. 

4.2 Through the Statement of Accounts and external audit process, the Council is 
firmly committed to the guiding principle of transparency and accountability in 
the stewardship of public funds.   

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options for consideration.

Claire Hazeldene
Acting Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

n/a Stephen Robinson
Principal Finance Officer (Financial 
Reporting)
stephen.robinson@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 42



1

APPENDIX 1 - Redmond Review Briefing Report 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the Redmond review into external audit 
and governance and to detail its significant findings, conclusions and 
recommendations.

1 Background

2.1 In June 2019, Sir Anthony Redmond was tasked by government to undertake 
an independent review of the effectiveness of local audit and its ability to 
demonstrate accountability for audit performance to the public. It also 
considered whether the current means of reporting an Authority’s annual 
accounts enables the public to understand this financial information and 
receive the appropriate assurance that the finances of the authority are sound. 

2.2 His findings were published in September 2020 - “Independent Review into the 
Oversight of Local Audit and the Transparency of Local Authority Financial 
Reporting”.
The review gathered evidence, drew conclusions and made recommendations 
around three key areas across the public sector;

 Audit Performance – are outcomes adequate? 

 Governance Arrangements – is the quality of consideration and 
management of audit reports by authorities sufficient to ensure overall 
accountability?

 Financial Reporting – Do current practices relating to the annual 
publication of financial information support accountability.

3 Evidence / Findings

3.1 The review gathered evidence from both the audited and the auditors as well 
as those bodies responsible for coordination across the public domain. Its 
most significant findings in each key area being;  

Audit Performance

 40% 18/19 audits did not complete by due date.
 A patchwork of organisations currently regulate external audit across 

the public sector.  This can lead to auditors facing different expectations 
and conflicting resource demands across their client base.  

 Price v quality – As currently configured the local audit market is 
vulnerable, due in no small part to the under-resourcing of audit work 
required to be undertaken within the contract sum. There was a 

Page 43



2

consensus that fees were some 25% too low to ensure appropriate 
resourcing of audits.

 While defensive of their own staff both the auditors and the audited 
raised concerns about levels of knowledge and experience in the other 
team.

 In England, neither the financial nor the value for money audit includes 
a specific responsibility to provide an opinion on whether a local 
authority is financially sustainable. The current emphasis on auditing 
past actions and existing measures falls short of providing the 
assurance many stakeholders reasonably expected from the audit 
process relating to the financial stability and resilience of local 
authorities over the medium and longer term.

 A new Code of Local Audit Practice published in 2020 by the 
Comptroller & Auditor General and effective from the 2020-21 financial 
year was seen as addressing many of the concerns around providing 
assurance on financial sustainability. It mandates moving from a binary 
audit opinion on whether appropriate arrangements are in place to 
ensure value for money, to a commentary on: 
• Financial sustainability: how the body plans and manages its 
resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 
• Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions 
and properly manages its risks; and 
• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the body uses 
information about its costs and performance to improve the way it 
manages and delivers its services. 
In addition, the updated Code will explicitly require auditors to document 
clearly the work that they have done to support their findings.

Governance

 The constitution and standing of Audit committees varied across the 
public domain.  Often their membership lacked the necessary skill sets 
to understand and question the financial reports presented to them.

 There was a lack of independent members with relevant expertise on 
audit committees. 

 Mixed experience in the level and adequacy of dialogue with auditors 
with scope for better engagement with other stakeholders outside of the 
confines of audit committee.  Often the Key Audit Partner (KAP), 
charged with signing the audit opinion, had limited contact and 
interaction with those charged with governance and control within the 
organisation.  

 Public access and understanding of audit reports limited.

Page 44



3

Financial Reporting

 Existing reports (Financial Statements) are so technical as to be a 
barrier to public engagement and understanding.

 Quality of narrative reports variable and often lacking any informative 
link to performance against budget. 

 There were concerns that auditors lacked understanding of the body 
being audited and focused their resources on areas that added no value 
to the audit opinion. Owing to International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) applying to public sector statements auditors spend a 
significant amount of time focusing on Property and Pension Fund 
valuations whereas a fuller understanding of the business would lead to 
more of a focus on major areas of expenditure and the level of usable 
non-ringfenced revenue reserves. 

4. Review Conclusions

4.1 The reviews significant conclusions were; 

Audit Performance

 The lack of a coordinating body at the national level means that there is 
no clarity of purpose for auditors and no consistent mechanism for 
ensuring their performance and accountability across the local audit 
framework.

 The current fee structure for local audit does not ensure that adequate 
resources are deployed to meet the full extent of local audit 
requirements.

 There is a compelling argument to extend the scope of audit to include 
a substantive test of financial resilience and sustainability.

 The update to the Audit Code, effective from 2020-21, will go some way 
to expand the focus of audit beyond simple value for money to financial 
resilience and sustainability. It will require auditors to provide a narrative 
statement on the arrangements in place. This move away from a 
simpler binary opinion should encourage auditors to provide more 
useful and timely information to stakeholders and to be bolder in 
highlighting concerns. 

 The 31st July deadline for publishing audited local authority accounts 
places too much demand on the resources of both auditors and audited 
over a limited timeframe.

 It is important that the auditing and accounting staff at all levels have 
the requisite skills, training and experience to fulfil their roles.

Governance

 Audit committees often lack the necessary structure, knowledge and 
expertise to provide an independent challenge on behalf of the authority 
in respect of accountability and risk management arrangements.

Page 45



4

 Independent members with relevant skill sets often provide an audit 
committees with an essential perspective and expertise. 

 There needs to be greater engagement with the auditors across all 
stakeholders if true accountability is to be ensured.  Dialogue should not 
be restricted to a certain committee or set of officers. 

Financial Reporting

 The technical nature of existing reports (Financial Statement), as 
dictated by statutory requirements, makes them a barrier to public 
engagement and understanding.

 While narrative reports, as part of the Statements or in addition thereto, 
often seek to present the financial information in a more user friendly 
manner they vary in both content and success in this endeavour.

 There is a need for a standardised statement of service information and 
costs, compared to the annual budget, that is aimed at taxpayers and 
service users.

 A disproportionate amount of audit resources are absorbed checking 
Property and Pension Fund valuations to ensure compliance with IFRS 
requirements better suited to the private sector. The reason for this 
argument is that most changes to fixed asset and pension values are 
‘reversed out’ of the accounts by a range of statutory adjustments. As a 
result, in those circumstances, these valuations have no immediate 
impact on the cost of delivering services or on the financial resilience of 
a local authority.

5. Review Recommendations

5.1 The review’s key recommendations were; 

Audit Performance

 Creation of a new body, the Office for Local Audit Regulation (OLAR), to 
provide overall coordination at the national level, with the following key 
responsibilities:
• procurement of local audit contracts (with a more realistic fee structure to 
maintain a buoyant market of appropriately resourced auditing firms);
• producing annual reports summarising the state of local audit; 
• management of local audit contracts; 
• monitoring and review of local audit performance (with the power to sanction 
underperforming Auditors); 
• determining the code of local audit practice; and 
• regulating the local audit sector. 

 Better training for Auditors to ensure they possess the correct skill set for 
public sector audit.

Page 46



5

 Support for the National Audit Office’s revised code of practice and its 
emphasis on improving the audit of financial sustainability and Value for 
Money

 Moving the deadline to the end of September from the end of July to allow 
adequate time for audits to be completed with the resources available.

Governance

 The external auditor in the person of the Key Audit Partner be required to 
present an Annual Audit Report to the first Full Council meeting after 30 
September each year, irrespective of whether the accounts have been 
certified; OLAR to decide the framework for this report.

 That Authorities examine the composition of Audit Committees to ensure that 
the required knowledge and expertise are always present when considering 
reports.

 All audit committee members to be given appropriate training
 All audit committees to have an independent member with relevant expertise
 That as a minimum an annual audit report be submitted to Full Council 

demonstrating transparency and accountability from a public perspective.
 External Audit to recognise Internal Audit as a valuable source of assurance 
 The authority’s statutory officers (Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and 

S151) to routinely meet with the Key Audit Partner
 Chief Finance Officer to ensure that the authority’s accountancy staff is 

adequately resourced and trained
 All new S151 officers to receive induction training into the role.

Financial Reporting

 A simplified statement of service information and costs is prepared by each 
local authority in such a way as to enable comparison with the annual budget 
and council tax set for the year. These Summarised Accounts would enable 
Council taxpayers and service users to judge the performance of the local 
authority for each year of account. The new statement would be subject to 
audit and prepared in addition to the statutory accounts, which could be 
simplified. All means of communicating such information should be explored to 
achieve access to all communities.

 Cipfa to consult on this proposal with a view to having it in place and subject to 
audit for 2021/22.

 Cipfa/LAPSAAC to look further at the interpretation of International Financial 
Reporting Statements as applied to valuations.

6. Next Steps

6.1 While some of the recommendations can be considered now for local 
implementation others will require action by third parties including Central 
Government:

 Creation of the OLAR requires primary legislation by Government.

Page 47



6

 While it is proposed that OLAR takes responsibility for setting audit fees there 
has already been some movement in addressing pricing issues in local 
authority audit. Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) is currently 
consulting on proposals for a new approach that recognises two distinct 
categories of fee variations, from audits of 2020/21 accounts onwards.

• national variations; required for changes that relate to the conduct of all or 
most audits, such as changes to the auditing and accounting codes, standards 
and regulatory requirements, where a standard cost can be reasonably 
estimated; and

• local variations; required for issues that relate to local factors arising from the 
conduct of a particular audit, such as the additional audit work required if 
accounts reflect complex transactions that are not built into the scale fee, or 
where working papers are poorly prepared, or for work relating to an auditor’s 
statutory responsibilities such as objections, statutory recommendations or 
public interest reports. 

Comments on the proposals are welcome from all stakeholders. The 
consultation will close on Tuesday 1 December 2020.

 The Redmond report included examples of how the new Summarised 
Accounts could look. Statutory Guidance however will need to be developed to 
set out the final form and content. The CIPFA/LASAAC review of the statutory 
accounts, in the light of the new requirement to prepare the standardised 
statement, will determine whether there is scope to simplify the presentation of 
local authority accounts by removing disclosures that may no longer be 
considered to be necessary.  It is suggested that these processes could be 
completed in time to be applied to the 2021/22 statements.

 While the council already has in place many examples of good practice, 
existing audit governance arrangements should now be reviewed in light of the 
Review’s recommendations and the benefit of adopting some new practices 
explored.  

Page 48



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: Internal Audit Periodic Report July to 
October 2020

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak – Head of Audit

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific 

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 Audits Completed Between 1st July 
2020 and 31st October 2020
Appendix 2 Internal Audit 2020/21 Progress 
Information as at 31st October 2020

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Head of Audit must report periodically to the Audit 
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee note the information contained within this report.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the findings of the remaining audits 
undertaken by the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2019/20 financial 
year and also to summarise performance information for the Council’s Internal 
Audit service for the 2020/21 financial year to date. This includes a breakdown 
of audits in progress and completed to date, the number and classification of 
recommendations made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by 
management.

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



3.2 Due to a combination of unplanned investigative work and the effects of the 
Covid-19 pandemic including diversion of audit resources to support the 
corporate response to the administration of the Governments various business 
grants support schemes, the Audit Plan for 2019/20 took longer than usual to 
complete. In addition, the follow up of audit recommendation implementation 
was temporarily paused until 31st May. This lack of data collection is reflected 
in this report but is expected to return to normal levels over the coming 
months.

3.3 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 71% of 2019/20 
and 100% of 2020/21 audit recommendations that are due have been 
implemented (see paragraph 3.2). Where deficiencies in internal control have 
been identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be 
resolved in an appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such 
cases. It should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to 
implement agreed recommendations.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 
resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

None John Leak
Head of Audit
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 50



6. Detail

6.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the findings of the remaining audits 
undertaken by the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2019/20 financial 
year and also to summarise performance information for the Council’s Internal 
Audit service for the 2020/21 financial year to date. This includes a breakdown 
of audits in progress and completed to date, the number and classification of 
recommendations made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by 
management.

6.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual risk 
assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2019/20 was agreed by this 
Committee at the 6th June 2019 meeting and for the current financial year 
2020/21 at the 3rd July 2020 meeting. The Internal Audit service also carry out 
work outside of the audit plan for which a contingency is usually built in. This 
unplanned work consists mainly of internal control consultancy work and 
special investigations into suspected fraud and irregularity.

6.2 Audit Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations

6.2.1 A summary of the audits completed during the period 1st July 2020 to 31st 

October 2020 is shown in the table below. Further details of these audits 
outlining key issues and strengths and improvements are shown in Appendix 
1.

RecommendationsService Audit
High 
Risk

Medium 
Risk

Low 
Risk

Assurance

2019/20 Audit Plan
Assets Parking 0 3 8 Satisfactory

Housing 
Services

Carelink 0 4 19 Limited

Assets Housing 
Planned 
Maintenance

0 3 3 Satisfactory

Finance Recovery 0 0 4 Satisfactory

Finance AES 
Governance

0 0 2 Substantial

Development 
Services

Development 
Control

0 1 4 Satisfactory

Revenues & 
Benefits

Council Tax 0 2 2 Satisfactory

Finance Creditor 
Payments

0 0 1 Substantial

Page 51



RecommendationsService Audit
High 
Risk

Medium 
Risk

Low 
Risk

Assurance

Revenues & 
Benefits

NNDR 0 2 1 Satisfactory

Revenues & 
Benefits

Housing 
Benefits

0 3 14 Satisfactory

2020/21 Audit Plan
Finance Capital 

Accounting
0 0 0 Substantial

OD & 
Transformation

Corporate 
Governance

0 4 12 Satisfactory

Housing Housing Rents 0 0 3 Satisfactory

6.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits completed during the 2019/20 financial 
year including the current status of audit recommendations is detailed in the 
Annual Report later on this agenda.  All audit recommendations have been 
agreed, and to date 71% of 2019/20 audit recommendations that are due have 
been implemented. A breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed 
during the current financial year 2020/21 including the current status of audit 
recommendations is detailed in Appendix 2.  All audit recommendations have 
been agreed, and to date 100% (see paragraph 6.4.3) of 2020/21 audit 
recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where deficiencies in 
internal control have been identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are 
satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate manner and they will 
continue to monitor such cases.  It should be noted that it is the responsibility 
of relevant Managers to implement agreed recommendations.

6.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit recommendation 
being allocated a risk, every audit completed has been given an ‘assurance 
opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal control 
environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control 
environment. The control levels are defined as follows:

Control 
Level

Definition

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve the 
objectives and controls are consistently applied.

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the most part, 
are consistently applied.  However, weakness in the design or 
inconsistent application of controls within a few areas put 
achievement of particular objectives at risk.

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance with 
controls in a number of areas are such to put the system objectives 
at risk.

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of controls, 
which leaves the system open to significant abuse or error.

Page 52



6.3 Audits In Progress

6.3.1 The status of 2020/21 audits that are currently in progress is shown in the 
table below.

Service Audit Status
Democratic & 
Community 
Services

Equalities & 
Diversity

Audit Complete. Quality control stage.

OD & 
Transformation

Project 
Management

Audit Complete. Quality control stage.

Legal & Election 
Services

Elections Audit in Progress.

Service 
Commissioning

Leisure Sports 
Development

Audit in Progress.

Housing Services Housing Advice Audit in Progress.

OD & 
Transformation

Performance 
Management

Audit in Progress.

Regeneration Regeneration Audit in Progress.

Health & Safety Emergency 
Planning

Audit in Progress.

OD & 
Transformation

Risk 
Management

Audit in Progress.

6.4 Progress against Audit Plan

6.4.1 The 2019/20 financial year had seen steady progress against planned audits 
up until early March 2020. However due to a combination of unplanned 
investigative work and the Covid-19 pandemic which resulted in disruption to 
services and additional workloads, work on ongoing planned audits slowed 
considerably. In addition considerable audit resource in the first quarter of 
2020/21 was diverted to support the corporate response to the administration 
of the Governments various business grants support schemes. As a result the 
Audit Plan for 2019/20 took longer than usual to complete.

6.4.2 The 2020/21 financial year has seen steady progress against planned audits 
and all of the audits in progress or nearing completion as detailed in 6.3 above 
will be completed soon. It is anticipated at this stage that a satisfactory year 
end position will be achieved.

6.4.3 Current key progress information for the 2020/21 audit plan is summarised in 
the following table, excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated. In 
order to help services to adjust to additional workloads and disruption following 

Page 53



the shift to home working from the end of March, the follow up of audit 
recommendation implementation was temporarily paused until 31st May. This 
lack of data collection is reflected by the figure shown in the table below and in 
Appendix 2, however this is expected to return to normal levels over the 
coming months:

Summary Progress Information to 31st October 2020
Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially completed 18%
Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress 25%
Number of recommendations made (including unplanned work) 19
Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service Managers 
(including unplanned work)

100%

Percentage of recommendations implemented within agreed 
timescale (including unplanned work)

100%*

* See paragraph 6.4.3

6.4.4 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating controls exist 
or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency of the current system 
for the benefit of service delivery.

Page 54



APPENDIX 1

AUDITS COMPLETED BETWEEN 1st JULY 2020 &
31st OCTOBER 2020

2019/20 AUDIT PLAN

Car Parking
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The procedure for banking, reconciliation 

and monitoring of car parks income 
requires review to ensure that all monies 
are accounted for and reconciled 
consistently across the Alliance.

 The ‘Collection and banking of income and 
internal mail courier services’ contract 
should be formally signed and all contract 
specification requirements including 
provision of insurance policies complied 
with.

 All contracts relating to the Car Parks 
service should be closely monitored to 
ensure that the terms of the individual 
contracts are met.

 A project is currently underway relating to 
replacement of the current cash only pay 
and display machines, with those which 
have the addition of a contactless/chip and 
pin payment option.  

 Keys to pay and display machines are 
strictly controlled, recorded and held 
securely.

 Monthly and annual data is provided by the 
Parking Board in relation to car parking 
enforcement activity/income etc.

 Season ticket applications and the relevant 
payment are all now made via the Council’s 
website. 

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Car Park Inspections 2
Procurement 1
Reconciliation & Banking of Income 1
Pay & Display Machines 2
Discrepancies 1
Car Parking Charges 1
Enforcement 1
Contract Management 2
Total 3 7 1

Page 55



APPENDIX 1

Carelink
Assurance Level

Assurance: LIMITED
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide limited assurance that 
risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and Objectives 
section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Formal stock records should be maintained 

to record all items of stock delivered and 
distributed.

 A review should be undertaken of the 
current process in place for the 
transportation of installation/sign up 
documentation to ensure that the privacy, 
confidentiality and security of the 
information is maintained at all times.

 A Procurement exercise should be 
undertaken to ensure that a suitable 
provider of the Carelink monitoring service 
is arranged.

 Adequate procedures should be developed 
between the Recovery and Carelink service 
with regard to the recovery of Carelink 
debts.

 Corporate recruitment procedures have 
been followed with regard to the 
appointment of Carelink staff.

 All staff have been provided with IT 
equipment to enable mobile access to client 
information

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Stock Records 1
Client Documentation 1 1 2
Staffing Model 3 1
Client Visits 1 1
Promotion of the Carelink Service 1
Client Satisfaction 1
Carelink Monitoring Service 1 3 1
Income 1 2 1
Staffing Costs 1
Total 4 10 9

Page 56



APPENDIX 1

Housing Planned Maintenance
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 In accordance with the Document Retention 

Schedules all construction tender contracts 
should be retained.

 A contract variation form should be fully 
completed and retained in all relevant 
instances.

 An appropriate procurement exercise 
should be undertaken in relation to 
asbestos surveying services.

 Contract spend is regularly monitored.
 Liaison between Procurement and Assets 

resulted in tenders being consistently 
managed.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Contract 3
Risk Management 1
Contract Files 1
Lessons Learned 1
Total 3 3

Page 57



Recovery
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 2019/20 collection rate targets are on target 

(as at February 2020) for Business Rates, 
Council Tax and Sundry Debtors.

 Procedures are in place to manage ‘special 
arrangement’ payment plans.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Policies & Procedures 2
OHMS System 1 1
Total 3 1

Page 58



AES Governance
Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Strengths and Improvements
 Legal agreements have been developed 

and signed by all relevant parties.
 Regular board meetings are held with the 

Alliance being adequately represented.
 All relevant stakeholders are provided with 

sufficient information regarding the progress 
/ performance of the joint venture.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Asset Register 1
Set Up Costs 1
Total 2

Page 59



Development Control
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Planning applications should be promptly 

processed in accordance with statutory 
timescales.

 The Enforcement Plan should be formally 
adopted by the Council. 

 Increased use of electronic processing to 
improve response times.

 Improvements to the information available 
via the website allow greater levels of 
customer interaction.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Processing of Applications 1 2
Pre-Application Advice 1
Monitoring of Conditions 1
Total 1 2 2

Page 60



Council Tax 
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 A procedure should be developed to ensure 

that all new build properties are physically 
inspected and where complete, issued with 
a Completion Notice and registered with the 
Valuation Office.

 All discounts/exemptions should be 
reviewed in accordance with the 
documented review schedule.

 Weekly Valuation Office schedules are 
reconciled to the system promptly.

 Payments are posted to customer accounts 
promptly.

 A daily reconciliation is carried out  between 
the Income Management System and the 
Council Tax System.

 A monthly reconciliation is carried out 
between the Council Tax System and the 
Financial Management System.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

VO Notifications Statistics 1
Inspection of New Build Properties 1
Review of Discounts / Exemptions 1
System Access 1
Total 2 2

Page 61



Creditor Payments
Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 For the sample of invoices reviewed, where 

required, all were matched to a 
corresponding purchase order and had 
been appropriately authorised.

 Payments made via the purchase ledger 
are regularly reconciled to the Creditors 
control account.

 97% of invoices were paid within 30 days, 
exceeding the target of 96% and better than 
the 2018/19 outturn (SMDC 92%, HPBC 
95%).

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Credit Notes 1
Total 1

Page 62



NNDR
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 A robust, proactive procedure for the 

inspection/review of business rate premises 
should be developed and implemented to 
ensure that all new builds, voids, change of 
circumstances etc. are captured promptly 
and the relevant accounts updated 
accordingly.

 All issues and anomalies relating to 
Business Rates accounts, identified during 
the processing of the Covid-19 Business 
Grants, should be actioned accordingly.  
Proactive measures should be put in place 
to ensure that all such future instances are 
identified and processed promptly.

 A sample of discounts awarded was 
reviewed and all had been correctly 
applied.

 Parameters had been correctly set within 
the system for the 2019/20 billing year.

 Valuation Office schedules are reconciled 
to the Council’s NNDR system weekly.

 NNDR income is regularly reconciled to the 
Income Management System, and the 
Financial Management System.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Year End Procedure Notes 1
Inspection/Review of Business Premises 1
Covid-19 Business Grants 1
Total 2 1

Page 63



Housing Benefits
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The ‘Risk Based Verification Policy’ 

should be reviewed on an annual basis 
and submitted for approval by the 
appropriate body in accordance with 
HB/CTB Circular S11/2011.

 All new claims should be processed 
consistently in accordance with the 
Alliance’s ‘Risk Based Verification Policy’.

 The reasons for accepting requests to 
backdate benefit should be adequately 
recorded including consistent application 
of ‘good cause’ and provision of 
documentary proof in support of requests 
where feasible.

 All new benefit claims and changes of 
circumstances are received online.

 The Housing Benefit Debt Service (HBDS) 
has been implemented in order to identify 
details of employers and earnings.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Risk Based Verification 2 1
Backdated Claims 1 1
Claims Processing 3
Management Checks 1
System Variables 1
Payment on Account 2
Overpayments 2
System Storage 1
Part Completed Applications 1
Emergency Payments 1
Total 3 11 3

Page 64



2020/21 AUDIT PLAN

 Capital Accounting
Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Asset Registers are updated accordingly 

based on information supplied by Legal 
Services and surveyor valuations. 

 Valuations are carried out in accordance 
with RICS and guidance issued by CIPFA.

 The most highly valued assets are valued 
annually to ensure confidence that the net 
book value recorded on the balance sheet 
is materially correct. 

 Adjustments for depreciation and 
revaluations are correctly recorded on the 
Integra system.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

None
Total

Page 65



Corporate Governance
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 A policy regarding the claiming of mileage 

and expenses for staff above grade AR9 
should be documented, approved and 
distributed to all relevant staff.

 All expenses, hospitality and leave 
claimed by Senior Officers should be 
subject to appropriate scrutiny and 
independently approved.

 The regular attendance of Senior Officers 
at meetings/events of external bodies 
should be subject to a formal independent 
approval process to ensure it provides 
sufficient benefit to the Alliance.

 Priorities and objectives have been agreed 
and adequately communicated.

 A ‘Local Code of Corporate Governance’ 
has been adopted which is in line with the 
latest CIPFA/Solace guidance.

 There are designated committees 
responsible for governance issues.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Ethical Framework 1
Induction Process 1
Promotion of Policies and Procedures 1 1
Claiming of Expenses 2
Attendance at External Bodies 1
Civic Cars 2
Interests / Gifts and Hospitality  1 2
Annual Leave and Additional Time Off 1 1 1
Appraisal Scheme 1
Total 4 8 4

Page 66



Housing Rents
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The rent debit was correctly calculated and 

applied to the OHMS system.
 Cash received as per the income 

management system is regularly reconciled 
to the OHMS rent system.

 Rents received/refunds reached customer 
accounts promptly.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Void Management 1 1
OHMS User Access 1
Total 2 1

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2020/21 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 31st OCTOBER 2020

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS

Regulatory Added 
value

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Corporate Governance 12 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 12 1 1 Satisfactory
Housing Rents 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 Satisfactory
Capital Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Elections Audit in Progress
Leisure Sports Developm’t Audit in Progress
Housing Advice Audit in Progress
Equalities & Diversity Quality Control Stage
Project Management Quality Control Stage
Performance Management Audit in Progress
Regeneration Audit in Progress
Emergency Planning Audit in Progress
Risk Management Audit in Progress
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 19 0 4 15
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE 0 0 0 0 1 1

Key:
Risk Class
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.

Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures. 

Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Added 
Value

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer.

Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 
information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision.

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: Corporate Governance Review

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak - Head of Audit

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific 

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Head of Audit must communicate results of audits to the 
appropriate parties.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee note the Audit Service’s 2020/21 review of the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the Audit Service’s recent review of 
the Council’s corporate governance arrangements in 2020.

3.2 This corporate governance review was undertaken as part of the Audit 
Service’s 2020/21 Audit Plan and was subsequent to a significant change in 
the Council’s senior management team following the resignation of the former 
Assistant Chief Executive and retirement of the former Chief Executive in 
February 2020 and March 2020 respectively.

3.3 The corporate governance procedures were reviewed to ensure that the 
following control objectives are being achieved:

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



 Mechanisms have been established to identify principal statutory 
obligations and corporate objectives;

 effective corporate governance arrangements are embedded within the 
authority;

 the authority has robust systems of internal control, which include systems 
and procedures to mitigate principal risks; and

 appropriate assurance is received from designated internal and external 
assurance providers.

3.4 It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the corporate 
governance system provide satisfactory assurance that risks material to the 
achievement of the systems objectives outlined in 3.3 above are adequately 
managed.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 
resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None.

6.2 Workforce

None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

None.

Page 72



6.5 Legal

None.

6.6 Climate Change

None.

6.7 Consultation

None.

6.8 Risk Assessment

None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

None John Leak
Head of Audit
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6.4

Page 73



7. Detail

7.1 Introduction

7.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the Audit Service’s recent review of 
the Council’s corporate governance arrangements in 2020.

7.1.2 This corporate governance review was undertaken as part of the Audit 
Service’s 2020/21 Audit Plan and was subsequent to a significant change in 
the Council’s senior management team following the resignation of the former 
Assistant Chief Executive and retirement of the former Chief Executive in 
February 2020 and March 2020 respectively.

7.2 Scope and Objectives

7.2.1 This audit of corporate governance was carried out in accordance with the 
2020/21 annual audit plan. We carried out a systems review of corporate 
governance procedures together with compliance testing, to ensure that we 
could form an opinion on the adequacy of system controls and to identify any 
weaknesses which may exist within the system.

7.2.2 The corporate governance procedures were reviewed to ensure that the 
following control objectives are being achieved:

 Mechanisms have been established to identify principal statutory 
obligations and corporate objectives;

 effective corporate governance arrangements are embedded within the 
authority;

 the authority has robust systems of internal control, which include systems 
and procedures to mitigate principal risks; and

 appropriate assurance is received from designated internal and external 
assurance providers.

7.3 Internal Controls

7.3.1 Within each of the objectives outlined in 7.2.2 above, a series of expected 
internal controls which are outlined below were tested to ensure that they are 
present and working effectively.

7.3.2 Mechanisms have been established to identify principal statutory obligations 
and corporate objectives:

 Responsibility for statutory obligations are formally established;

 there are effective procedures to identify, evaluate, communicate and 
implement legislative changes;

Page 74



 effective action is taken where areas of non-compliance are found in either 
mechanism or legislation;

 stakeholders are consulted on priorities and objectives;

 the authority’s priorities and organisational objectives have been agreed, 
adequately communicated, and are reasonable;

 objectives are reflected in departmental plans.

7.3.3 Effective corporate governance arrangements are embedded within the 
authority:

 An Ethical Framework has been adopted and provides sufficient 
information to ensure good governance;

 a code of corporate governance has been approved and adopted;

 there is a designated committee charged with governance responsibilities;

 the scrutiny panels are effective in challenging the decisions made by the 
executive;

 adequate corporate governance training is provided;

 an appropriate induction process is in place for all employees and elected 
members;

 the organisation has appropriate, documented Codes of Conduct in place 
for employees and elected members;

 breaches of the Code of Conduct are appropriately addressed.

7.3.4 The authority has robust systems of internal control, which include systems 
and procedures to mitigate principal risks:

 There is a written constitution in place which has been formally approved, 
regularly reviewed and widely communicated to all relevant staff/members;

 there is a whistleblowing policy in place which has been formally approved, 
regularly reviewed and widely communicated to all relevant staff;

 there is a counter fraud and corruption strategy in place which has been 
formally approved, regularly reviewed and widely communicated to all 
relevant staff;

 there are codes of conduct in place which have been formally approved, 
regularly reviewed and widely communicated to all relevant staff;

 employees/members are required to record pecuniary/non-pecuniary 
interests;

Page 75



 a register of gifts and hospitality is maintained;

 records of disclosures are made available via appropriate channels;

 disclosures are subject to regular review;

 policies regarding the claiming of expenses are in place;

 expenses claims are appropriately authorised and subject to regular 
review;

 policies regarding the claiming of leave are in place;

 leave requests are appropriately authorised;

 senior officer attendance at external bodies is adequately authorised;

 the performance of senior officers is monitored;

 a corporate complaints policy has been drawn up and is adhered to;

 exempt reports comply with the meaning of ‘exempt information’ within the 
constitution;

 the waiver of procedure rules is adequately documented, appears 
reasonable and has been appropriately approved;

 a policy regarding the use of civic transport is in place.

7.3.5 Appropriate assurance is received from designated internal and external 
assurance providers:

 The authority has determined appropriate internal and external sources of 
assurance;

 departmental assurances are provided;

 the authority has published an annual governance statement.

7.4 Audit Findings & Recommendations

7.4.1 Our detailed audit findings are reported on an exception basis.  We only 
include the issues where we feel that controls should be strengthened and do 
not include the areas where we found arrangements to be satisfactory

7.4.2 An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk (High, Medium, Low) 
is shown below: 

Page 76



Description High Med Low
Ethical Framework 1
Induction Process 1
Promotion of Policies and Procedures 2
Claiming of Expenses 2
Attendance at External Bodies 1
Civic Cars 2
Interests / Gifts and Hospitality  3
Annual Leave and Additional Time Off 1 2
Appraisal Scheme 1
Total 0 4 12

7.4.3 Medium risk recommendations are by definition considered essential to 
implement to ensure adequate system controls / necessary improvement in 
service provision. The medium risk recommendations and the findings that 
prompted them are therefore discussed in further detail below.

7.4.4 The ‘Joint Terms of Conditions of Employment’ contain information regarding 
the claiming of mileage and subsistence expenses.  However, this only applies 
to employees on green book terms and conditions which covers grades AR3 
to AR9.  No separate policy has been documented for staff above grade AR9, 
therefore it has been recommended that a policy regarding the claiming of 
mileage and expenses for staff above grade AR9 should be documented, 
approved and distributed to all relevant staff.

7.4.5 Expenses claimed by the Chief Executive had generally been authorised by an 
Executive Director, therefore it has been recommended that all expenses 
claimed by the Chief Executive should be subject to appropriate scrutiny (with 
involvement from the council leaders) and independently approved. It should 
be noted that responsibility for expense claims rests with the claimant.

7.4.6 There is no formal assessment/approval procedure for the attendance of 
senior officers at external bodies, therefore it has been recommended that the 
regular involvement/attendance of Senior Officers at meetings/events of 
external bodies should be subject to a formal independent and transparent 
approval process by the council leaders to ensure it provides sufficient benefit 
to the Alliance.

7.4.7 The ‘Annual Leave and Time Off Policy’ states that all leave should be 
approved by the appropriate line manager, however, it was found that annual 
leave requested by the previous Chief Executive had generally been 
authorised by his personal assistant, therefore it has been recommended that 
all annual leave and additional time off claimed by the Chief Executive should 
be subject to appropriate scrutiny (with involvement from the council leaders) 
and independently approved.

Page 77



7.4.8 The low risk recommendations are summarised below:

 The Ethical Framework requires review to ensure it contains accurate and 
consistent information relating to the supporting codes and protocols.

 The importance of ensuring that the induction process available for all new 
starters including the Code of Conduct is satisfactoriy completed should be 
reiterated.

 All employee codes, policies and procedures relating to corporate 
governance (e.g. Code of Conduct, Whistleblowing Policy, Counter Fraud 
& Corruption Strategy etc.) should be easily accessible.

 Employees should be provided with regular reminders/training to refresh 
their knowledge of the Code of Conduct.

 The policies regarding the use of the civic car should be reviewed to 
ensure consistency between both authorities and should include permitted 
use and eligibility.

 Councillor information available via the website requires review to ensure 
that up-to-date declarations are published for all Councillors.

 The requirement for officers to declare pecuniary and non-pecuniary 
interests and gifts and hospitality should be regularly promoted, relevant 
forms made easily accessible and controlled records retained.

 The ‘Annual Leave and Time Off Policy’ requires updating to include further 
detail in relation to time off for public duties.

 Staff should be reminded of the requirement to request all types of leave 
and additional time off eligible under the ‘Annual Leave and Time Off 
Policy’ through the annual leave system, with all such requests being 
appropriately reviewed and approved.

 The Chief Executive’s appraisal should be undertaken by senior elected 
members at least annually in accordance with the guidance within the 
‘National Salary Framework & Conditions of Service Handbook’ for Local 
Authority Chief Executives.

7.5 Assurance Opinion

7.5.1 All of the recommendations made in the audit report outlined in 7.4 above 
have been agreed with the Head of Organisational Development and 
Transformation / Senior Officer (Governance and Member Support) where 
appropriate and implementation will be monitored in accordance with the Audit 
Service’s established follow-up procedures.

7.5.2 It is therefore our opinion that controls currently in place within the corporate 
governance system provide satisfactory assurance that risks material to the 
achievement of the systems objectives outlined in 7.2.2 above are adequately 
managed.

Page 78



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: Internal Audit Annual Report

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak - Head of Audit

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific 

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 Year End Information for 2019/20
Appendix 2 Summary of Assurance Opinions 

2019/20

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Head of Audit must deliver an annual internal audit 
opinion and report that can be used by the organisation to inform its 
governance statement.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee note the Audit Service’s 2019/20 year end performance 
information contained within this report.

2.2 That the committee note the opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise year end performance information 
for financial year 2019/20. This includes a breakdown of audits undertaken 
and completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations 
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management, external 
review results, developments in the service and an assessment of the 
Council’s internal control environment.

Page 79

Agenda Item 10



3.2 The strategic audit plan covered the period 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020 
and the year end performance information referred to above is outlined in the 
detailed part of this report. Due to a combination of unplanned investigative 
work and the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including diversion of audit 
resources to support the corporate response to the administration of the 
Governments various business grants support schemes, the Audit Plan for 
2019/20 took longer than usual to complete. In addition, the follow up of audit 
recommendation implementation was temporarily paused until 31st May. This 
lack of data collection is reflected in this report but is expected to return to 
normal levels over the coming months.

3.3 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 71% of 2019/20 
audit recommendations that are due have been implemented (see paragraph 
3.2). Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not 
corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases.

3.4 Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance that the Council’s 
governance arrangements including risk management and systems of internal 
control were operating adequately and effectively.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 
resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money.  

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None.

6.2 Workforce

None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

Page 80



6.4 Financial Considerations

None.

6.5 Legal

None.

6.6 Climate Change

None.

6.7 Consultation

None.

6.8 Risk Assessment

None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

None John Leak
Head of Audit
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6.4

Page 81



7. Detail

7.1 Introduction

7.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise year-end performance information 
for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2019/20 financial year.

7.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon the annual audit 
plan, which for the financial year 2019/20 was reported to this committee on 
6th June 2019 effective from 1st April 2019. The internal audit service also 
carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a contingency is built in. This 
unplanned work consists mainly of consultancy work and special 
investigations into suspected fraud and irregularity.

7.2 Progress against Audit Plan

7.2.1 The 2019/20 financial year had seen steady progress against planned audits 
up until early March 2020. However due to a combination of unplanned 
investigative work and the Covid-19 pandemic which resulted in disruption to 
services and additional workloads, work on ongoing planned audits slowed 
considerably. In addition considerable audit resource in the first quarter of 
2020/21 was diverted to support the corporate response to the administration 
of the Governments various business grants support schemes. As a result the 
Audit Plan for 2019/20 took longer than usual to complete.

7.2.2 Key information for both 2019/20 and the previous financial year for 
comparison purposes is summarised in the following table, including 
unplanned work unless otherwise stated. In order to help services to adjust to 
additional workloads and disruption following the shift to home working from 
the end of March, the follow up of audit recommendation implementation was 
temporarily paused until 31st May. This lack of data collection is reflected by 
the figure shown in the table below, however this is expected to return to 
normal levels over the coming months:

Summary Year End Information for 2019/20 2018/19

Percentage of Audit Plan completed (performance 
against annual plan)

90% 92%

Number of recommendations made 230 274

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service 
Managers

100% 100%

Percentage of recommendations due implemented 
within agreed timescale

71%* 100%

* See paragraph 7.2.2

Page 82



7.2.3 In order to put this into context, completion of 90% of the audit plan represents 
four planned audits that were not completed. These audits have been included 
within the 2020/21 audit plan where appropriate.

7.2.4 A further breakdown of the audits completed is detailed in Appendix 1. Should 
recommendations have not been agreed, compensating controls exist or 
service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency of the current system 
for the benefit of service delivery. However, all audit recommendations have 
been agreed.

7.2.5 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit recommendation 
being allocated a risk and class, every audit completed has been given an 
‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal 
control environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual audit 
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal 
control environment. The control levels are defined as follows:

Control Level Definition
Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve the 

objectives and controls are consistently applied.
Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the most 

part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in the design 
or inconsistent application of controls within a few areas put 
achievement of particular objectives at risk.  

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance with 
controls in a number of areas are such to put the system 
objectives at risk.

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of controls, 
which leaves the system open to significant abuse or error. 

7.2.6 To date 71% of all 2019/20 audit recommendations that are due have been 
implemented (see paragraph 7.2.2). Where deficiencies in internal control 
have been identified and not corrected, the Head of Audit is satisfied that they 
will be resolved in an appropriate manner and he will continue to monitor such 
cases. However, it should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant 
Managers to implement agreed recommendations.

7.3 Effectiveness of Internal Audit

7.3.1 The Internal Audit Service has a quality control system in place to ensure that 
the outputs of the work of the Service are robust, consistent, factual, accurate, 
complete and well referenced and presented. This system consists of peer 
review and management review of all audit working papers and reports before 
audit reports are released in draft form, discussed with management and 
agreed final versions formally issued.

7.3.2 In accordance with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, which required the 
Council to, each financial year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control, and that the findings of this review must be 
considered by a committee or by members of the authority meeting as a 
whole, a self-assessment to determine compliance with the Public Sector 

Page 83



Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) has been undertaken as part of the Quality 
Assurance and Improvement Programme.

7.3.3 The most recent independent external quality review undertaken in 2016/17 
concluded that the internal audit provision within the Council complies with the 
expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Internal Audit is 
therefore effective and conforms sufficiently with the requirements of PSIAS / 
LGAN to ensure that the opinion given in this Annual Report can be relied 
upon for assurance purposes. The annual review of the effectiveness of 
Internal Audit is considered by the Audit & Regulatory Committee in a 
separate report on this agenda.

7.4 External Review

7.4.1 In addition to the requirements of the Section 151 Officer, the Internal Audit 
Service has a duty to satisfy the requirements of the Council’s external auditor. 

7.4.2 External Audit have used our audit reports to help them inform their risk 
assessment of the financial statement audit.

7.5 Developments During 2019/20

7.5.1 During 2019/20, the Audit Service has carried out the following:

 Implemented the annual risk based audit plan in accordance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards ;

 Carried out and issued agreed audit reports for 35 Service areas;
 Stated an ‘assurance opinion’ for each audit completed, based upon 

Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal control environment;
 Contributed to the development of the Audit and Regulatory Committee 

through regular reports;
 Delivered an annual internal audit opinion for 2018/19 in accordance with 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards providing reasonable assurance 
that the systems of internal control were operating adequately and 
effectively;

 Endorsed a satisfactory Annual Governance Statement with the Council’s 
2018/19 Statement of Accounts and reported on action plan progress 
during the year;

 Approval of updated Alliancewide Policy and Procedures governing the use 
of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

7.6 Developments for 2020/21

7.6.1 In 2020/21 the work of the service will again be driven by the regulatory 
requirements of local government finance and the corporate and operational 
risks facing the Council. The Audit Service is a joint service with Staffordshire 
Moorlands DC as part of the strategic alliance and will continue to operate and 
improve joint working practices. The Service is committed to a culture of 
continuous improvement and will strive to continue adding value to Council 
services through regular audits and close liaison with Heads of Service, 

Page 84



improving internal control systems and the efficiency, economy and 
effectiveness of their services.

7.6.2 The main areas of work during 2020/21 will be: -

 Agreeing working arrangements with the External Auditors and in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards;

 Ensuring the Audit Service continues to operate in accordance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards by undertaking a gap analysis and 
preparing and implementing an action plan if appropriate;

 Continuing to develop the joint Audit Service by reviewing and 
implementing where appropriate the recommendations of the independent 
external quality review of the service;

 Reviewing and preparing the annual Audit Plan for 2020/21;
 Completing the Audit Plan in accordance with locally developed 

performance indicators;
 Planning for and complying with external audit requirements;
 Maintaining robust procedures for monitoring and reporting the 

implementation of audit recommendations ;
 Reviewing and if appropriate updating corporate policies ;
 Developing and continuing close working relationships within Derbyshire 

and Staffordshire;
 Distributing audit reports promptly;
 Identifying value for money recommendations and agreeing action with 

clients;
 Ensuring that all high risk audit recommendations are agreed and actioned 

immediately;
 Maintaining and improving client satisfaction levels;
 Reviewing counter fraud arrangements;
 Engaging the services of an ICT audit specialist where required;
 Undertaking a knowledge and skills framework assessment to identify and 

evaluate the overall knowledge and skills of the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee in order to identify training needs and to enable the committee 
to perform effectively.

7.7 Assessment of the Council’s Internal Control Environment

7.7.1 In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of 
Audit must deliver an annual internal audit opinion which must conclude on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, 
risk management and control. The system of internal control is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to 
achieve policies, aims and objectives. Internal Audit can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of adequacy and effectiveness.

7.7.2 As previously detailed in paragraph 7.2.5 above, every audit completed has 
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of 
the internal control environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual 
audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 

Page 85



internal control environment. During the financial year 2019/20 the following 
opinions were given by Internal Audit (see Appendix 2 for breakdown): 

 7 service areas had controls within the system to provide substantial 
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives 
are adequately managed;

 26 service areas had controls within the system to provide satisfactory 
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives 
are adequately managed;

 2 service areas had controls within the system to provide limited 
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives 
are adequately managed;

 0 service areas had controls within the system to provide unsatisfactory 
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives 
are adequately managed.

7.7.3 Based on the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year and the 
resultant assurance opinions outlined above, and the implementation by 
management of the recommendations agreed, and also comments made by 
our external auditors, Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance 
that the Council’s governance arrangements including risk management 
and systems of internal control were operating adequately and 
effectively. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified, we 
have been assured that these have been or will be resolved in an appropriate 
manner and we will continue to monitor such cases.

Page 86



APPENDIX 1
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – YEAR END INFORMATION FOR 2019/20

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS

Regulatory Added 
value

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Assets & Facilities 9 1 0 0 0 4 4 2 6 4 0 Satisfactory
Housing Rents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Civica Shared Services Data 
Breaches

7 0 0 0 0 4 4 4 3 2 2 Limited

Health & Safety 7 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 8 7 7 Satisfactory
BACS Transmissions 5 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 3 3 1 Satisfactory
Sickness & Time Management 10 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 11 5 5 Satisfactory
Bank Contract 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 Substantial
Housing Right to Buy 10 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 11 8 7 Satisfactory
Housing Tenancy Allocation 7 0 0 0 0 3 3 3 4 4 4 Satisfactory
Taxi Licensing 5 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 6 3 3 Satisfactory
Safeguarding 7 2 0 0 0 2 2 2 7 7 7 Satisfactory
Procurement 12 3 0 0 0 2 1 1 13 11 11 Satisfactory
Insurance 4 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 5 5 0 Satisfactory
Member Services 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 7 0 Satisfactory
Parking 10 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 8 0 0 Satisfactory
Tourism 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 Satisfactory
Pavilion Gardens Contract Mngmt 7 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 5 1 1 Satisfactory
Environmental Health Licensing 2 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 3 0 0 Satisfactory
Food Safety 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 1 Substantial
Hybrid Mail 4 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 7 0 0 Satisfactory
Carelink 14 9 0 0 0 4 1 1 19 5 5 Limited
AES Governance 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 Substantial
AES Contract Management 4 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 Satisfactory
Housing Planned Maintenance 6 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 Satisfactory
Sundry Debtors 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 Satisfactory
Treasury Management 3 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 Satisfactory
Development Control 3 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 4 0 0 Satisfactory
Recovery 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 Satisfactory
Council Tax 4 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 Satisfactory
Creditor Payments 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 Substantial
Payroll 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 Satisfactory
NNDR 3 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 Satisfactory
General Ledger 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 Substantial
Budgetary Control 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Housing Benefits 14 3 0 0 0 3 0 0 14 0 0 Satisfactory
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 230 0 49 181
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE 0 0 23 18 82 57

Key:
Risk Class
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.

Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures. 

Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Added 
Value

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer.

P
age 87



APPENDIX 1

Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 
information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision.

P
age 88



APPENDIX 2

HIGH PEAK B.C. INTERNAL AUDIT

SUMMARY OF ASSURANCE OPINIONS 2019/20

SUBSTANTIAL ASSURANCE SATISFACTORY ASSURANCE
AES Governance AES Contract Management
Bank Contract Assets & Facilities
Budgetary Control BACS Transmissions
Creditor Payments Council Tax
Food Safety Car Parking
General Ledger Development Control
Housing Rents Environmental Health Licensing

Health & Safety
Housing Benefits
Housing Planned Maintenance
Housing Right to Buy
Housing Tenancy Allocation
Hybrid Mail
Insurance
Member Services
NNDR
Pavilion Gardens Contract Mngmt
Payroll
Procurement
Recovery
Safeguarding
Sickness & Time Management
Sundry Debtors
Taxi Licensing
Tourism
Treasury Management

LIMITED ASSURANCE UNSATISFACTORY ASSURANCE
Carelink
Civica Shared Services Data 
Breaches

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

 24th November 2020

TITLE: Treasury Management Update

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Barrow - Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services & Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Interim Executive Director 
& Chief Finance Officer
Emily Bennetts - Finance Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-specific

Appendices Attached – Appendix A: Treasury Management Mid-Year Update 
Report, 30th September 2020

1. Reason for the Report

1.1. To allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury Management 
performance in 2020/21 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
and generally accepted good practice.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 30th 
September 2020.

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the Council in March 2010. 
This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of which is to produce at 
least one mid-year operational report.

3.2. This report comprises the following:

 The latest interest rate forecast and comment on the impacts of Covid-19;

 Investment income earned to date and projected for 2020/21;

 The current investment portfolio;

Page 91

Agenda Item 11



 A capital programme update and projected borrowing requirements with 
associated borrowing costs for 202/21; and

 Compliance against Prudential and Treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2020/21.

3.3. The main headlines include:

 There is no expectation for any increase to the Bank of England base rate 
within the medium term.

 The Covid-19 pandemic and resulting economic crisis is considered in 
terms of the impact on treasury management, in particular the cash flows.

 A shortfall of £72,780 is expected against the investment income budget of 
£160,000 due to reducing interest rates; offset in part by a windfall of 
£10,520 from an unexpected distribution of the former Icelandic 
investments.

 The average return on investments achieved by the Council during the 
quarter 2 was 0.27%. This was reduced from 0.50% in quarter 1.

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £30.8million spread across eight 
separate institutions as at 30th September 2020.

 There is small underspend of £13,140 (£11,530 general fund; £1,610 HRA) 
forecast against the borrowing costs budget.

 The Council’s total level of debt as at 30th September was £66.8million at 
an average annual borrowing rate of 3.92%.  

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1. An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the Council’s main 
priorities.

5. Alternative Options

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak Borough 
Council for 2020/21 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is a statement 
of fact and there are no options.

6. Implications

6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None

Page 92



6.2. Workforce

None

6.3. Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and 
Equality Policies.

6.4. Financial Considerations

Included throughout the report

6.5. Legal

None

6.6. Climate Change

Ethical Investing under Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) is 
considered within the report

6.7. Internal and External Consultation

None

6.8. Risk Assessment

There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury 
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or deposits. 
For this reason, the Council engages the services of external Treasury 
Management advisors, Link Asset Services (‘Link’).

Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s 
formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. That Strategy includes a 
number of risk management features such as the overriding priority that security 
of deposit takes precedence over return on investment.

Claire Hazeldene
Interim Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

‘Treasury Management – Governance & 
Scrutiny Arrangements’ (Audit & 
Regulatory Committee September 2009)

‘Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2020/21’ (Audit & Regulatory 
Committee, February 2020)

Finance & Procurement
Town Hall, Buxton

Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Emily.Bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Treasury Management Update 
30th September 2020

1. Introduction 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

3. Covid-19 Impact on Treasury Management

4. Investment Income

5. Investment Portfolio

6. Capital Programme & Borrowing Position

7. Prudential Indicators

Page 95



1. Introduction 

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management which recommends that Members should be briefed on Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year.

1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising 
the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual 
treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury 
management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
are reported to full Council.

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 was 
approved by Council on 12th February 2020. This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 30th September 2020 and projects forward 
for the remainder of the financial year.

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 
base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast:

% Sep-
20

Dec-
20

Mar-
21

Jun-
21

Sep-
21

Dec-
21

Mar-
22

Jun-
22

Sep-
22

Dec-
22

Mar-
23

Jun-
23

Sep-
23

Dec-
23

Mar-
24

Bank Rate 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

5yr PWLB rate 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

10r PWLB rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB 
rate 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80

50yr PWLB 
rate 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60

2.2. Link’s interest rate forecast has the Bank of England base rate continuing at 
0.10% for the short- to medium-term; and PWLB rates continuing at the current 
levels.

2.3. Uncertainties surround the future Bank of England base rate in the potential for 
negative interest rates. Link has not included these in the forecast, but their 
average earnings forecast shows that Councils can expect an average return of 
near 0%. The PWLB consultation is due to be reported on imminently and the 
outcome of this may impact the borrowing rates on offer.

Page 96



3. Covid-19 impact on Treasury Management

3.1. The impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s cash flows is being carefully monitored: 
the timing of some cash flows is changed in comparison to the usual trends with 
deferrals of payment plans for Council Tax and Business Rates; some grant 
payments having an earlier payment profile; some cash flows have been 
reduced, such as car parking income; and the grant schemes which the Council 
is delivering has the effect of unusual cash inflows followed by the outflows over 
a period; all of which results in a very different cash flow profile.

3.2. ‘Liquidity’ of cash flows being a primary concern in Treasury Management, 
subordinate only to ‘Security’, it was decided in the first quarter than no new 
fixed term investments would be made. As the cash flow forecast has 
developed during the last 6 months the Council has made investments in 95 
day notice accounts which offer a good level of liquidity with slightly improved 
‘Yields’ compared to instant access accounts.

3.3. Whilst the Council was in receipt of the £25million grant from Central 
Government to distribute under the Business Grants Scheme, it was necessary 
to increase all the Counterparty limits set in the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for 2020/21 in order to accommodate these balances in the short 
term as the scheme was administered and payments could be made. When 
cash balances had returned to more normal levels, the treasury management 
team reverted to the original approved Counterparty Limits. This is shown in 
more detail at section 5.

4. Investment Income 

4.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 30th September 2020 totalled 
£60,130. The Council has budgeted to receive £160,000 in investment income 
in 2020/21. The budget was set with an expectation of higher interest rates than 
the current environment: 0.75% for the first three quarters of the year and a 
further potential rise to 1.00% at the end of the year. 

4.2. During the year interest rates on accounts have fallen significantly, initially 
following the Bank of England base rate reductions in March to 0.10%, then 
compounded by the market sentiment pricing in potential negative rates. This is 
illustrated in the table below with the reduction in average interest rates from 
quarter 1 to quarter 2.

4.3. The investment portfolio is also reduced due to the continuation of internal 
borrowing, though this still represents a net saving in lieu of the external 
borrowing costs. Therefore a shortfall of £72,780 is forecast on the investment 
income budget.

Page 97



4.4. The average interest rate achieved on the Council’s investments compared to 
industry benchmark rates shows the Council is still performing relatively well:

Comparator Average Rate 
Q1

Average Rate 
Q2

HPBC Average 0.50% 0.27%
HPBC long-term fixed (>364 days) 1.10% 1.10%
HPBC short-term fixed (<364 days) 0.93% 0.52%
HPBC instant access 0.37% 0.14%
Benchmarks
*LIBID 12 month rate 0.56% 0.14%
*LIBID 6 month rate 0.40% 0.02%
*LIBID 3 month rate 0.26% 0.00%
*LIBID 7 day rate 0.00% 0.00%

Base Rate at the end of the period 0.10% 0.10%
*LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate

Crescent Development

4.5. The Council provided a loan of £250,000 to the Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust 
as part of the Crescent development. Interest is charged on the loan at 6% 
which amounts to £15,000 during 2020/21. This income is included in the 
investment income forecast outturn reported above.

Icelandic Investments

4.6. At the end of July the Council received an unexpected 16th dividend payment 
from the former Icelandic investment with Heritable Bank of £10,518.59. This 
will be treated as windfall income in the year and offsets some of the investment 
income shortfall against the budget.

Page 98



5. Investment Portfolio

5.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 30th September 2020 totalled £30,767,000:

Financial Institution
Country 

of 
Domicile

Amount
Maximum 

recommended lending 
duration

Interest 
rate at end 
of period

Average 
Maturity

Aberdeen MMF UK £7,000,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.09% Instant access

Handelsbanken UK £6,300,000 ORANGE (12 months) 0.10% Instant access

Santander UK £5,200,000 RED (6 months) 0.60% 95 day notice

Federated MMF UK £3,500,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.06% Instant access

Lloyds Bank UK £3,000,000 RED (6 months)
(formerly Orange) * 0.20% 95 day notice

Barclays ‘Green’ UK £3,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.30% 95 day notice

Lloyds Bank UK £1,150,000 RED (6 months)
(formerly Orange) * 1.10% 364 days

Standard Chartered 
‘Sustainable’ UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.09% 181 days

NatWest Bank UK £617,000 BLUE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access

TOTAL £30,767,000

MMF = Money Market Fund
* Lloyds reduced to RED (6 months) on 21st October following downgrade by Moody’s

5.2. The average level of funds available for investment up to 30th September 2020 
was £30.95million. 

5.3. New 95 day notice accounts have been opened with Barclays and Lloyds Bank 
in order to obtain an improved yield compared to money market funds and 
instant access accounts available, but with an acceptable period of liquidity in 
these uncertain times; and there has been a new 6 month deposit with Standard 
Chartered:

 The Barclays account is linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing 
Programme which covers ‘a variety of thematic projects including energy 
efficiency, renewable energy, green transport, sustainable food, agriculture 
and forestry, waste management and greenhouse gas emission reduction’. 
In the 2020-21 TMSS there was reference to Ethical Investing under 
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) considerations; and the 
Councils would consider investment opportunities with ESG links provided 
that the Security, Liquidity, Yield (SLY) criteria are met. Barclays is 
categorised by Link as a ‘Red’ counterparty and therefore meets the 
Council’s primary treasury management criterion of ‘Security’; the 95 day 
notice period is acceptable and therefore meets the second criterion of 
‘Liquidity’; and the account pays the same rate as the ‘normal’ or ‘non-
green’ deposit with this institution (0.30% reducing to 0.10% if notice is 
given), therefore meets the third criterion ‘Yield’. With all these factors 
considered, the opportunity was taken to invest in this ‘green’ deposit. 

Page 99



 In addition to this the Council was recently made aware of a Sustainable 
Deposit with Standard Chartered, which as with the Barclays deposit, 
meets the Security Criterion, is an appropriate Liquidity and offers the 
same Yield as the 'normal' deposit with this institution. Therefore the 
Council invested £1m in this product. Standard Chartered operate this 
product under their 'Green and Sustainable Product Framework', which 
includes 'No poverty; zero hunger; good health and well-being; quality 
education; gender equality; clean water and sanitation; affordable and 
clean energy; decent work and economic growth; industry, innovation and 
infrastructure; reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and communities; 
responsible consumption and production; climate action; life below water; 
life on land; peace, justice and strong institutions; partnerships for the 
goals'.

 The Lloyds Bank 95 day notice account pays 0.20% with no reduction in 
interest rate during the notice period. This account pays the same as a 12 
month fixed deposit currently, so offers much better liquidity for the same 
yield, with a strongly rated counterparty.

5.4. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Link, is shown by colour 
banding in the table below with the TMSS approved counterparty limits. Due to 
unexpected cash balances in the Council’s accounts relating to Covid grants at 
the start of the year, treasury management was operated with extended 
counterparty limits between 1st April and 31st August. As cash balances 
returned to more normal levels, these limits reverted to the approved TMSS 
levels on 1st September:

Approved TMSS 2020/21

Extraordinary 
counterparty limit 

increase applied from 
1st April to 31st 

August due to Covid-
19 excess cash 

balances
Colour Banding Maximum Duration 

of Investment
UK 

Banks
International 

Banks UK Banks

PURPLE Up to 2 years £7.0m £5.2m £14.0m
ORANGE Up to 12 months £6.3m £4.2m £12.6m

RED Up to 6 months £5.2m £3.5m £10.4m
GREEN Up to 100 days £4.5m £2.8m £9.0m

BLUE (Part nationalised 
financial institutions) Up to 1 year £7.0m n/a £14.0m

BLUE (NatWest) Up to 1 year £10.5m n/a £21.0m

Money Market Funds Up to 1 year £7.0m n/a £14.0m

Page 100



5.5. Group limits are also applied where counterparties are in the same group as 
each other:

Portfolio % increased 
by 50%

Approved 
TMSS 2020/21

Extraordinary counterparty 
limit increase applied from 1st 

April to 31st August due to 
Covid-19 excess cash balances

Category Group 
Principal Limit Group Principal Limit

BLUE £10.5m £21.0m
PURPLE £10.5m £21.0m
ORANGE £9.4m £18.8m

RED £8.0m £16.0m
GREEN £7.0m £14.0m

Money Market Funds £10.5m £21.0m

 
UK Sovereign Rating and Counterparty Duration

5.6. The Ratings agency Moody’s downgraded the UK’s credit rating on Friday 16th 
October to Aa3 from Aa2, the third downgrade in eight years. This does not 
directly affect the Council’s investment strategy or activity as the TMSS states 
that ‘when investing in institutions outside the UK, only banks and building 
societies located in countries with a minimum sovereign rating of ‘AAA’ will be 
used’, i.e. a change to the UK sovereign rating has no immediate impact. 

5.7. However, the ratings and outlooks of UK banks include an assessment of the 
willingness and capacity of a government to support banks in case of need. The 
lower UK sovereign debt rating has therefore reduced the uplift in some banks’ 
ratings. Banks affected currently in use by the Council were Bank of Scotland, 
Lloyds Bank, Santander and NatWest. The only resulting changes to the 
suggested durations on Link’s counterparty list were Bank of Scotland and 
Lloyds reducing to Red (6 months) from Orange (12 months), which also had 
the effect of reducing the counterparty limit to £5.2million (£8million Group) from 
£6.3million (£9.4million Group) previously.

5.8. The Council has an existing 12 month fixed term investment with Lloyds Bank. 
As this is a fixed term deposit, there is no option to terminate before the maturity 
date on 13th November 2020, but as this is less than six months away, there is 
no concern; the Council also has a 95 day notice account with Lloyds, but again 
this is within the new maximum duration limit; and the amounts held with this 
counterparty do not exceed the new (reduced) counterparty limits, so not action 
was required. It is also important to stress that these changes were solely 
because of action on the UK sovereign rating, not a reflection of deteriorating 
conditions at the banks themselves.

5.9. Any future downgrades of other counterparties are likely to have minimal impact 
on the Council’s investment activity as the majority of the current investment 
portfolio is instant access or 95 days in duration which fits in the lowest ‘Green’ 
creditworthiness duration limit of 100 days. All institutions used by the Council 
are currently ‘Red’ or higher.

Page 101



Other investment opportunities

5.10. The treasury team continually monitors the investment opportunities available to 
the Council including instant access accounts; notice accounts; money market 
funds; fixed term deposits and Certificates of Deposit. These are all with rated 
institutions (banks, building societies, money market funds). Another option is to 
invest the Council’s funds in the intra-local authority market. This type of 
investment is included in the Council’s TMSS for investments for up to 12 
months at the ‘yellow’ (up to 5 years) counterparty limit (currently £7m) as a 
specified investment; and up to 5 years at the >365 day limit  (currently £5m) as 
a non-specified investment. The ‘yellow’ counterparty limit is in line with Link’s 
view, as all local authorities are deemed to be AAA rated, secure and ultimately 
backed by government. 

5.11. As interest rates on more traditional investments continue to fall, the intra-local 
authority market offers some good yields particularly to the longer end, but it is 
worth being prepared to enter this market in any case to provide a wider 
counterparty spread as conversations continue about the threat of negative 
rates.

5.12. In order to make an investment, the treasury team would contact one of the 
Council’s brokers and make them aware of the amount of investment, duration 
and yield the Council would like to obtain; they then match this up with other 
local authority counterparts who need to borrow funds. There is no charge for 
this brokerage service when lending funds.

5.13. In the current climate, with Covid uncertainty and the impact on the Council’s 
financial position and cash flows, the treasury team propose to consider 
investment opportunities with any local authority of less than 1 year when funds 
are available and these present a better yield than available elsewhere. The 
treasury team has discussed this with Link and they are comfortable with this 
approach, reiterating that all local authorities are secure and supported by 
government.

Page 102



6. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position

Capital Programme Update

6.1. The table below provides current projections for capital expenditure and 
funding:

TMSS 2020/21 
Estimate

Current 
Estimate 

(includes 19/20 
carry forwards)

General Fund £4,651,000 £3,394,000
HRA £5,277,000 £4,446,000
Total Capital Expenditure £9,928,000 £7,840,000

Funded by:
    Capital Receipts £1,425,000 £716,000
    External Funding £550,000 £562,000
    Reserves £2,149,000 £2,263,000
    HRA Revenue £3,178,000 £2,347,000
2020/21 Net Financing Requirement £2,626,000 £1,952,000

Capital Financing Requirement
  Opening CFR £81,260,000 £80,951,000
    PLUS Net Financing Requirement £2,626,000 £1,952,000
    LESS Minimum Revenue Provision (£1,905,000) (£1,899,000)
  Closing CFR £81,981,000 £81,004,000

6.2. The Net Financing Requirement on 2020/21 spend is now estimated at 
£1,952,000: the variance is due to the reprofiling of elements of the capital 
programme, some due to delays resulting from the Covid 19 situation.

6.3. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a prudential indicator set to ensure 
that the Council's capital investment plans are affordable. The CFR represents 
the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from 
either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council's 
underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure and is derived by 
aggregating specified items for the Council's balance sheet. The closing CFR is 
in line with the Capital Financing Requirement set in the Treasury Strategy 
Statement. On the basis of the latest forecasts, the Council's capital investment 
plans remain affordable.

Borrowing Position

6.4. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 
Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  
Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement.

6.5. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 30th September 2020 is £66,825,404, 
as detailed in the table below:

Page 103



Lender External 
Borrowing

Average 
Interest Rate Maturity period

Public Works Loan Board £54,025,404 3.76% between 2 and 43 years

Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% between 3 and 48 years

Total £66,825,404 3.92%

6.6. The ‘operational boundary’ (£89,098,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£91,598,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing available to the 
Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of borrowing is within 
prudential limits.

6.7. The Council adopts a ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing whereby investments 
and borrowing are managed centrally with the proportional income and 
expenditure then split between the general fund and HRA. The Council has 
budgeted for interest charges and other financing costs of £1,837,940 to the 
general fund and £1,746,340 to the HRA in 2020/21

6.8. The budget for borrowing costs was based on the existing external debt and 
new external debt from the 2019/20 and 2020/21 general fund borrowing 
requirements. There has been no ‘new’ borrowing thus far during the current 
year and the Council continues to maintain a level of internal borrowing as 
anticipated. Therefore a small underspend of £13,140 is forecast against the 
borrowing costs budget, £11,530 attributable to the general fund and £1,610 to 
the HRA.

6.9. The treasury team will continue to monitor the appropriate time to externally 
borrow based on the profile of spend and opportunities to ‘internally’ borrow, 
considering the movement in interest rates and the cost of carry of any 
borrowings taken.

6.10. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure 
maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a 
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates are 
high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans.

Page 104



Less than 
1 year*

1 - 2 
years

2 - 5 
years

6 - 10 
years

11- 20 
years

21 - 30 
years

31 - 40 
years

41 - 50 
years

Greater 
than 50 
years

-

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

Debt Maturity Profile

*In accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBO’s is deemed to be the next call date. Loans of 
£4.3m showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.

6.11. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to 
amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the 
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the risk.  
The treasury team, along with Link, continually monitor prospects for debt 
rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council.

6.12. No rescheduling has taken place during 2020/21 to date.  The Council will work 
with Link to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking account of 
the premium the Council would expect to pay on early redemption compared to 
the potential interest savings.  

7. Prudential Indicators

7.1. The Council has operated within the treasury management and prudential 
indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020/21 and 
complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: 2019/20 Annual Review of the Effectiveness 
of Internal Audit

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak - Head of Audit

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific 

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 2019/20 Annual Review of the 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit – Action Plan
Appendix 2 Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to, each financial 
year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, 
and that the findings of this review must be considered by a committee or by 
members of the authority meeting as a whole. An annual review of the 
effectiveness of Internal Audit to demonstrate conformance with the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note forms 
part of this review.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee note the annual review of the effectiveness of Internal 
Audit for 2019/20 including the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme and that Internal Audit is operating effectively and can be relied 
upon when considering the Annual Governance Statement for 2019/209.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The purpose of this report is to explain the approach taken to comply with the 
requirements of the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 with regard to the 
annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, in 

Page 107

Agenda Item 12



particular the annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit and to 
present the findings of this review. This requirement was introduced in 2006.

3.2 An update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest PSIAS (March 
2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN) and Action Plan has 
been undertaken by the Head of Audit. This may subsequently be reviewed by 
the Council’s External Auditor as part of their review of Internal Audit. A 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) has also been 
produced in accordance with the requirements of the PSIAS.

3.3 In addition to the update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest 
PSIAS (March 2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN), other 
qualitative and quantitative factors have been taken into consideration when 
determining the effectiveness of Internal Audit.

3.4 Overall, the review has shown that Internal Audit is effective and conforms 
sufficiently with the requirements of PSIAS / LGAN to ensure that the opinion 
given in the Annual Report can be relied upon for assurance purposes when 
considering the Annual Governance Statement 2019/20.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 
resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money.  

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None.

6.2 Workforce

None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

None.

Page 108



6.5 Legal

None.

6.6 Climate Change

None.

6.7 Consultation

None.

6.8 Risk Assessment

None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
Local Government Application Note for the United 
Kingdom PSIAS
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015

John Leak
Head of Audit
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6.4

Page 109



7. Detail

7.1 Paragraph 6[1] of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 state that “a 
relevant authority must, each financial year, conduct a review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control.” The Regulations go on to state 
that the findings of this review must be considered by a committee or by 
members of the authority meeting as a whole. An annual review of the 
effectiveness of Internal Audit to demonstrate conformance with the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note forms 
part of this review.

7.2 Previous reviews have consisted of a self-assessment of compliance with the 
current Internal Audit Standards, production of an action plan identifying where 
full compliance has not been achieved to ensure full compliance with the 
Standards in future and consideration of other qualitative and quantitative 
factors when determining the effectiveness of Internal Audit. The Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards are the applicable Standards for 2019/20.

7.3 It is a requirement of the PSIAS that an external assessment of Internal Audit 
(EQA) be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent 
assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. In accordance 
with this requirement, an EQA was completed during 2016/17 and reported to 
this committee in July 2017.

7.4 Accordingly the annual review for 2019/20 consists of the following:

 Update the self assessment of compliance with the latest PSIAS (March 
2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN);

 Update the Action Plan created last year incorporating the external 
assessment of Internal Audit which highlighted areas of good practice and 
issues and recommendations to improve the service;

 Report upon the results of any satisfaction questionnaires and feedback 
from any external regulators;

 Report upon any other performance indicators collected in respect of 
Internal Audit;

 Undertake a self-assessment of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee 
for discussion as a separate item on this agenda.

7.5 The self-assessment of compliance with the PSIAS did not identify any areas 
of significant non-conformance with the PSIAS / LGAN. For the areas of partial 
conformance the effectiveness of the service was not considered to be 
seriously affected, as a small number of areas of partial compliance with 
PSIAS / LGAN is considered to be acceptable due to local circumstances.

7.6 The Action Plan created last year incorporating the external assessment of 
Internal Audit has been updated and is attached as Appendix 1. This action 
plan identifies some areas in which the service can be further improved and 
some revisions to the internal audit processes which may be beneficial in 
terms of improving efficiency and transparency. These issues will be 
considered and implemented over a period of time where this will result in 

Page 110



improvements to the service.

7.7 As part of the requirements of PSIAS, Internal Audit are required to produce a 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). The Councils 
Internal Audit QAIP was produced based on the Institute of Internal Auditors 
model template. This followed discussions with colleagues in other Councils 
who were adopting a similar approach. The QAIP is attached at Appendix 2 
and covers;

 documented working practices;
 quality control process;
 performance monitoring;
 annual review of effectiveness of Internal Audit; and
 an action plan for improvement of the service. 

7.8 In addition to the update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest 
PSIAS (March 2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN), other 
factors are deemed to be important when trying to determine the effectiveness 
of Internal Audit. These include both qualitative and quantitative issues, such 
as:

 Feedback from the External Auditors has been good. External Audit have 
used our audit reports to help them inform their risk assessment of the 
financial statement audit.

 Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires are issued to all managers with the 
final audit report to establish the effectiveness of the audit review. Based 
on the questionnaires returned, an average score of 99% has been 
achieved, indicating that a good service has been provided.

 During 2019/20, 90% of the Audit Plan was completed.
 During 2019/20, 49 medium risk recommendations and 181 low risk 

recommendations were made and agreed with management for 
implementation.

 The percentage of recommendations implemented within the timescale 
agreed with Managers was 71%*.
* Due to the Covid-19 pandemic the follow up of audit recommendation implementation 

was temporarily paused from 1st April until 31st May 2020 and this figure reflects this 
pause in data collection.

7.9 The review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee is reported as a 
separate item on the agenda of today’s Audit & Regulatory Committee 
meeting.

7.10 Overall, the review has shown that Internal Audit complies with the 
expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Internal Audit is 
therefore effective and conforms sufficiently with the requirements of PSIAS / 
LGAN to ensure that the opinion given in the Annual Report can be relied 
upon for assurance purposes when considering the Annual Governance 
Statement 2019/20. 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council & High Peak Borough Council

2019/20 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit – Action Plan

PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

Resources Annual Internal Audit Plans

In 2016/17 internal audit 
plans were presented to and 
approved by Audit 
Committees during week 
commencing May 2016.

It would be good practice to 
present draft plans to an 
earlier meeting so that work 
proposed for 
commencement on 1 April 
had been discussed and 
approved by the Audit 
Committee.

Consider This is not feasible due to the 
timing of Audit Committee 
meetings (February & May). 
However the draft audit plan 
could be discussed and 
approved by the Audit 
Committee Chair in March.

31/03/21 Head of Audit

Resources Internal Audit Customer 
Satisfaction Questionnaire

The service currently issues a 
21 point questionnaire to 
customers following 
completion of each 
assignment but only achieves 
a response rate of about 
50%.

Whilst the outcome of the 
questionnaire is generally 
positive it would be 
beneficial to consider 
whether the process might 
be amended to encourage 
greater interaction.

The HoIA should consider 
simplifying the questionnaire 
to reflect five key questions 
relating to:
- Pre-audit engagement
- Focus on relevant risks
- Progression of the audit
- Relevance and timeliness 

of reporting
- Added value experience

Consider The current questionnaire 
that is based on CIPFA best 
practice will be reviewed to 
ensure there is a balance 
between content and 
response rate.

31-03-21 Head of Audit

P
age 113



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

Competency Internal Audit Planning

Whilst internal audit 
planning is being increasingly 
based upon a risk model as 
required by the PSIAS, the 
process largely depends at 
present on an assessment 
devised by internal audit; 
rather than reflecting wider 
risk issues identified by each 
Council.

The analysis uses different 
definitions of risk impact to 
those approved within each 
Council’s risk management 
strategy. This is heavily 
focused on financial aspects 
which has a tendency to 
focus on assignments related 
to established systems rather 
than other aspects of the 
assurance framework that 
may be more appropriate in 
terms of independent 
review.

There should be a direct and 
identified link between the 
internal audit plan content 
discussed with senior 
management and the Audit 
Committees and the risk 
based reasoning for inclusion 
of the assignment in the 

a. Audit Plans should be 
constructed through using 
an audit needs 
assessment process which 
achieves the objectives of  
the service as set out in 
the Internal Audit Charter. 
The audit planning 
process should be 
designed to reflect the 
assurance needs of each 
Council through 
transparent alignment 
with the Council wide 
approach to risk 
management.

b. The internal audit 
planning process should 
further identify and 
document other sources 
of assurance that are 
available and upon which 
Councils can place 
reliance.

c. The starting point for the 
development of the 
Controls Evaluation 
Summary is a preliminary 
discussion with 
management regarding 
the inherent and residual 
risks relevant to the audit 

Review

Review

Review

The current audit needs 
assessment incorporates 
strategic risk register 
mapping. Consideration will 
be given to incrementally 
further aligning the process 
with the Councils risk 
management approach 
where prudent.

Consideration will be given 
to incorporating other 
sources of assurance into the 
audit planning process.

There is a longer term aim to 
align the audit process more 
closely to risk management. 
This has to be balanced with 
other considerations such as 
local external audit 
requirements. Audit planning 
meetings already include 

Ongoing

31-03-21

Ongoing

Head of Audit

Head of Audit

Head of Audit

P
age 114



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

audit plan as the plan finally 
approved should focus on 
the perceived needs of all 
parties for independent 
assurance regarding key 
policies, procedures, controls 
and assurances upon which 
each Council relies.

In turn this should drive the 
preparation of the terms of 
reference for each 
assignment.

The focus for assignments 
can therefore be shown to 
directly relate to the value of 
the ‘control risk’ and as a 
result an opinion based upon 
the robustness of the 
controls and assurances 
available to management 
and the Council.

area under review. This 
process could be more 
robust. It may aid 
assignment planning, if 
the management 
objectives for the area 
under review were also 
identified.

This should result in the 
formation of a direct link 
with the Authority’s risk 
register and the key 
mitigating controls 
highlighted, thereby 
aiding the understanding 
and ability of members of 
the Audit Committee to 
contribute to the 
assurance agenda.

Evidence of the 
agreement by the HoIA 
and client to the Controls 
Evaluation Summary 
should be retained on file.

discussion of risk registers 
and management objectives 
and these will be 
documented and agreement 
of control evaluations 
evidenced. In addition key 
mitigating controls identified 
in risk registers are tested to 
ensure their effectiveness in 
reducing inherent risk.

Competency Internal Audit Manual

The internal audit manual 
has been updated in 
February 2017 represents a 
comprehensive record of the 
practices to be followed by 
internal audit staff and 
reflects with the PSIAS.

The internal audit manual 
should be updated to reflect 
greater alignment with the 
risk management policies of 
the client authorities 
particularly in relation to the 
various aspects relating to 
planning and reporting 

Review The internal audit manual 
will be updated to reflect any 
changes implemented as a 
result of the issues raised in 
this EQA.

Ongoing Head of Audit

P
age 115



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

The significant emphasis of 
the PSIAS reflects the use of 
a risk based approach to 
internal audit work and in 
this respect it is felt that 
greater alignment with the 
risk management policies 
and appetite of the client 
local authorities would be 
beneficial.

(grading of 
recommendations and 
opinions) that have been 
identified within the EQA.

Competency Performance and 
Development Review (PDR)

The annual performance 
review of the Head of 
Internal Audit (HoIA) is to be 
undertaken by the line 
manager as S151 Officer in 
accordance with a revised 
PDR approved policy.

The PDR process for the HoIA 
should be informed by 
inviting the Chairs of the two 
Audit Committees to provide 
input to the process.

Consider Elected Members do not 
have involvement in staffing 
matters.

N/A N/A

Delivery Assignment Planning

The service currently initiates 
each audit through 
engagement with 
management which provides 
for creation of a Controls 
Evaluation Summary; this is 
then shared with 
management as a basis for 
discussion and agreement for 
commencement of the audit.

The assignment is then 
structured around a 
framework of expected 

Internal audit working papers 
should focus on major risks 
to the Council that have been 
identified and discussed with 
the auditee; this should 
include an assessment of the 
inherent risks in each area 
(regardless of whether these 
are specifically recorded with 
the risk management 
system).

The Controls Evaluation 
Summary should be 

Review There is a longer term aim to 
align the audit process more 
closely to risk management. 
This has to be balanced with 
other considerations such as 
local external audit 
requirements. Audit planning 
meetings already include 
discussion of risk registers 
and management objectives 
and these will be 
documented and agreement 
of control evaluations 
evidenced. In addition key 

Ongoing Head of Audit

P
age 116



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

controls and which is only 
loosely related to risks which 
have been considered with 
management.

constructed based upon the 
principal inherent risks 
identified and not expected 
controls.  This will allow the 
audit to naturally reflect 
assurance regarding the risks 
identified within the ‘Control 
Matrix’. 

The service should also seek 
to identify and record the 
other assurances available at 
an early stage in each 
assignment as this will aid 
staff when formulating an 
overall opinion.

An example template is 
provided at Appendix A.

mitigating controls identified 
in risk registers are tested to 
ensure their effectiveness in 
reducing inherent risk.
Consideration will be given 
to incorporating other 
sources of assurance into the 
audit planning process.

Delivery Focus on pre-identified 
controls

Assignments are currently 
undertaken by reference to 
controls; there is a tendency 
for these to reflect KLOE 
based controls or those from 
previous audit work rather 
than be generated to reflect 
the materiality of the current 
risk involved. 

The service has more 
recently commenced 
consideration of wider risk 
aspects relating to the area 

The use of risk as a basis for 
the control evaluation 
summary will allow auditors 
to focus on the key controls 
and assurances which reflect 
the most material control 
risk to the area under review.

The service should continue 
to develop pre-audit 
communication with 
management to focus on 
significant risk and key 
controls.

Review There is a longer term aim to 
align the audit process more 
closely to risk management. 
This has to be balanced with 
other considerations such as 
local external audit 
requirements. Audit planning 
meetings already include 
discussion of risk registers 
and management objectives 
and these will be 
documented and agreement 
of control evaluations 
evidenced. In addition key 

Ongoing Head of Audit

P
age 117



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

subject to review. mitigating controls identified 
in risk registers aretested to 
ensure their effectiveness in 
reducing inherent risk.
Consideration will be given 
to incorporating other 
sources of assurance into the 
audit planning process.

Delivery Supervision 

Demonstration of effective 
supervision is necessary in 
order to both ensure the 
quality of the review and 
provide appropriate 
instruction to staff regarding 
the delivery of the internal 
audit methodology.

Whilst it is recognised that 
the staff can consult each 
other regarding progress on 
work a common, formal and 
consistent process should 
exist in order to demonstrate 
supervision as each audit 
progresses.

The service should utilise the 
existing Manager Review 
process to provide a further 
documented trail of 
supervision throughout the 
audit and cross reference to 
discussions and 
correspondence by email; in 
addition to the formal record 
that currently exists when 
approving the draft report.

Review The quality control process 
will be reviewed and 
amended accordingly.

31-03-21 Head of Audit

Delivery Closing meetings

At present no formal 
mechanism exists for the 
management of an exit 
meeting as a basis for 
discussing the outcomes of 
an audit prior to draft report 
which is used as a basis for 

The HoIA should consider 
whether introducing an exit 
meeting form to be 
completed on completion of 
field work would aid 
production of the draft 
report and contribute to 

Consider Exit meetings prior to 
production of a draft report 
currently take place at the 
conclusion of audit fieldwork 
to ensure factual correctness 
and manager buy-in. These 
communications will be 

31-03-21 Head of Audit

P
age 118



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

an exit meeting with 
management.

reducing the time taken to 
finalisation of a report. 

documented.

Delivery Audit Opinions - 
Recommendations 

These are currently 
developed and assessed by 
each internal auditor, prior 
to release of the draft report 
and which include a grading 
of the recommendations 
being made. 

The basis for grading of 
recommendations should 
influence the overall opinion 
for each audit directly, for 
example if a risk falling into a 
definition of the highest 
impact category is identified 
(potential for death, loss 
greater than £500k) then the 
assurance level given is 
reduced. Any risk of this 
nature should automatically 
trigger a negative audit 
opinion of ‘limited 
assurance’.

Aligning the grading of 
internal audit 
recommendations with the 
impact/likelihood gradings 
within each Councils risk 
management system 

a. Risk definitions used by 
internal audit should be 
developed to reflect the 
risk appetite within each 
organisation, and the 
definitions of impact and 
likelihood used by the 
Council. Explanation of 
the use of these gradings 
should be included in all 
reports.

It is recognised best 
practice to use 
terminology such as High, 
Medium and Low  or 
Fundamental, Significant 
and Merits Attention and 
perhaps support this with 
RAG rated colours linked 
to the Council’s risk 
management system.

These should be used by 
each internal auditor to 
grade the 
recommendation and 
discuss the level of risk to 
which the organisation is 
exposed with each 

Review The current risk definitions 
will be reviewed  to ensure 
best practice and 
consistency.

31-03-21 Head of Audit

P
age 119



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

provides a consistent 
understanding of the relative 
importance of findings within 
both the internal audit team 
and those being audited.

At present the service adopts 
a basis which provides 
flexibility for the HoIA to 
determine the grading of the 
recommendations being 
made and the overall 
opinions. This does however 
lead to inconsistencies with 
regard to grading of 
recommendations and 
overall assurance opinions 
being made.

auditee at the exit 
meeting.

b. Consideration should be 
given to removing the 
need to include ‘low’ 
rated recommendations 
in formal audit reports; 
alternatively reflecting on 
these in discussion at the 
closure meeting and 
confirmed in a side letter 
or email to the manager. 
This would aid the profile 
of internal audit through 
concentrating on things 
that really matter in 
relation to significant risk 
as defined within risk 
management policies.

Consider The current risk definitions 
will be reviewed  to ensure 
best practice and 
consistency.

31-03-21 Head of Audit

Delivery Audit Opinions - Overall 
opinions  

These are currently based 
upon the personal 
judgement of each auditor, 
within the definitions 
specified in the following 
table. These are subject to 
review by the HoIA prior to 
release of the draft report.

Wider best practice provides 
for three levels of opinion 
being substantial, adequate 
(reasonable) or limited as 

The grading of reports should 
be based upon the level of 
risk exposure identified 
within the review and reflect 
the highest  ranked 
recommendation being 
reported upon. 

Best practice would reflect:
- Where a fundamental risk 

(red) is identified that 
limited assurance is given.

- Where significant risks 

Review The current risk definitions 
and assurance levels will be 
reviewed  to ensure best 
practice and consistency.

31-03-21 Head of Audit

P
age 120



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

this provides a clear 
indication to stakeholders of 
the level of assurance that 
can be gained. This opinion 
can then be aligned directly 
with the nature of the risks 
being identified and the 
grading of those 
recommendations being 
made.

(amber) are identified 
then adequate assurance 
is given, and

- Where ‘merits attention’ 
(green) risks are identified 
these are not referred to 
in the report and 
substantial assurance is 
given.

An example of a matrix for 
providing overall assurance 
opinions is included as 
Appendix C.

Delivery Annual Report

The HoIA produces an 
Annual Internal Audit report 
which summarises the years 
work and includes analysis of 
performance. The opinion 
reflects a format that takes 
account of all information 
and sources of assurance 
available to the HoIA and 
therefore reflects upon the 
assurances provided in each 
audit supporting the current 
statement:

“Based on the work 
undertaken by Internal Audit 
during the year and the 
resultant assurance opinions 
outlined above, and the 
implementation by 

In alignment with 
recommendations made 
earlier, the internal audit 
plan should be constructed 
to provide an explicit link to 
risk and the other assurances 
available so that the HoIA is 
able to provide wider 
assurance to each Authority 
in support of the governance 
statement. 

Best practice is that the 
Annual Report should 
contain reference to all 
significant risks and 
therefore co-ordination with 
and an understanding of 
issues being raised by the 
range of assurance sources 

Consider The annual report content 
will be reviewed in 
accordance with best 
practice.

31-07-21 Head of Audit

P
age 121



PSIAS Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer

management of the 
recommendations agreed, 
and also comments made by 
our external auditors, 
Internal Audit can provide 
reasonable assurance that 
the Council’s governance 
arrangements including risk 
management and systems of 
internal control were 
operating adequately and 
effectively. Where 
deficiencies in internal 
control have been identified, 
we have been assured that 
these have been or will be 
resolved in an appropriate 
manner and we will continue 
to monitor such cases”.

Whilst this reflects a position 
it could be better structured 
to meet the requirements of 
the PSIAS as it:

‘must also include significant 
risk exposures and control 
issues, including fraud risks, 
governance issues, and other 
matters needed or requested 
by senior management and 
the board’.

available is essential in order 
to meet this broader scope.

An example of the words 
which may be used has been 
provided in Appendix B.

P
age 122



Recommendation grading Explanation

Enhance The internal audit managed service must enhance its practice in order to 
demonstrate transparent alignment with the relevant PSIAS in order to 
demonstrate a contribution to the achievement of the organisations objectives in 
relation to risk management, governance and control.

Review The Internal audit division should review its approach in this area to better reflect 
the application of the PSIAS.

Consider The internal audit division should consider whether revision of its approach merits 
attention in order to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the delivery of 
services

P
age 123



T
his page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

APPENDIX 2
Staffordshire Moorlands DC & High Peak BC

Internal Audit Service
Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme

1 Introduction
Internal Audit’s Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP) is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance to the various stakeholders (the Audit Committee, Senior 
Management, the External Auditor and Operational Managers etc) that Internal Audit:

 Conforms with the Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of Internal Auditing, Core 
Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and 
the Standards;

 Has an adequate Internal Audit Charter, goals, objectives, polices and procedures;

 Contributes to the organisations governance, risk management and control 
processes;

 Has complete coverage of the audit universe;

 Complies with applicable laws, regulations and other standards that the internal 
audit activity may be subject to;

 Has identified the risks affecting the operation of the internal audit activity itself;

 Has an effective continuous improvement activity in place and adopts best 
practice; and

 Adds value to improve the organisations operations and contributes to the 
attainment of the organisations objectives.

The Head of Audit is ultimately responsible for the QAIP, which covers all types of Internal 
Audit activities, including consultancy.  The QAIP must include both internal and external 
assessments.  Internal assessments are both ongoing and periodical and external 
assessments must be undertaken at least once every five years.  
The QAIP is reviewed on an annual basis.  

2 Internal Assessments
Internal Assessments are made up of both ongoing reviews and periodic reviews.
Ongoing reviews
Ongoing reviews provide assurance that the processes in place are working effectively to 
ensure that quality is delivered on an audit by audit basis. This includes continuous 
monitoring of:
 Engagement planning and supervision (preapproval of the audit scope, innovative 

best practices, budgeted hours, and assigned staff);
 Standard working practices (including working paper procedures, sign off, report 

review, checklists to ensure that the audit process has been followed );
 Feedback from other clients and stakeholders; and
 Analysing performance metrics to measure audit plan completion and stakeholder 

value.

Page 125



- 2 -

Periodic reviews
Periodic assessments are designed to assess conformance with Internal Audit’s Charter, 
the Standards, Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of Internal Auditing, Core Principles for 
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the quality of the audit 
work and supervision, policies and procedures supporting the internal audit activity, the 
added value to the organisation and the achievement of performance standards.
Periodic assessments will be conducted through:
 Working paper reviews for conformance to the definition of Internal Auditing, Core 

Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the 
Standards, and internal audit policies and procedures;

 Self-assessment of the internal audit activity with objectives established as part of 
the QAIP components – Governance, Professional Practice and Communication;

 Review of internal audit performance measures and benchmarking of best 
practices. Periodic activity and performance reporting to the Audit Committee and 
other stakeholders as deemed necessary. 

 Annual self-review of conformance to the PSIAS.
The periodic self assessment should identify the quality of ongoing performance and 
opportunities for improvement and to check and validate the objectives and criteria used in 
the QAIP.  The self assessment will be completed on an annual basis and the results 
reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management.
External Assessment
The External Assessment will consist of a broad scope of coverage that includes the 
following:
 Conformance with the Standards, the Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of 

Internal Auditing, Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, 
the Code of Ethics and Internal Audit’s Charter, plans, policies, procedures, 
practices, and any applicable legislative and regulatory requirements;

 Expectations of Internal Audit as expressed by the Audit Committee and Senior 
Management;

 Integration of the Internal Audit activity into the governance process;
 The mix of staff knowledge, experiences, and disciplines, including use of tools 

and techniques, and process improvements; and
 A determination as to whether Internal Audit adds value and improves the 

Council’s operations.
An external assessment will be conducted every five years by a qualified, independent 
assessor from outside the Council.  The assessment will be in the form of a full external 
assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external validation.  The format of the 
external assessment will be agreed with the Audit Committee and Chief Executive.
Assessment scale
The scale to assess the level of conformance of the internal audit activity with the 
standards is as follows:
Generally Conforms / Partially Conforms / Does Not Conform
(IIA Quality Assessment Manual Scale)

Page 126



- 3 -

Reporting on the Quality Program
Internal Assessments – reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management on an 
annual basis.  The internal assessment report will be accompanied by a written action 
plan in response to significant findings and recommendations contained in the report. 
External Assessments – reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management.  The 
external assessment report will be accompanied by a written action plan in response to 
significant findings and recommendations contained in the report.  
Follow up – The Head of Audit will implement appropriate follow up actions to ensure that 
recommendations made in the reports and action plans developed are implemented in a 
reasonable timeframe.

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit & Regulatory Committee

24 November 2020

TITLE: 2019/20 Annual Review of the Effectiveness 
of the Audit & Regulatory Committee

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak – Head of Audit

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific 

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 CIPFA Checklist – Self Assessment of 
Good Practice
Appendix 2 CIPFA Assessment Tool - Evaluating 
the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee
Appendix 3 Audit & Regulatory Committee Terms 
of Reference

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 Having considered the report on the Annual Review of the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit, members of the Audit & Regulatory Committee will be aware of 
the requirement to comply with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015. As 
part of this process of assurance, best practice suggests that an annual review 
of the effectiveness of the Audit & Regulatory Committee should be 
undertaken.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee consider and approve the annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Audit & Regulatory Committee.

2.2 That the committee make an appropriate recommendation to Council to 
approve Audit & Regulatory Committee’s Terms of Reference.

Page 129

Agenda Item 13



3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report and accompanying appendices will assist the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee in their consideration and discussion on the effectiveness of this 
Committee, and how this is to be measured. CIPFA guidance published in 
March 2018 sets out the basis for the self assessment.

3.2 The committee are requested to discuss these documents and form 
agreement on their content.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
informs the Annual Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our 
future financial resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for 
money.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police 2018 Edition
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015

John Leak
Head of Audit
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 130



6. Detail

6.1 An audit committee’s effectiveness should be judged by the contribution it 
makes to, and the beneficial impact it has on, the authority’s business. Since it 
is primarily an advisory body, it can be more difficult to identify how the audit 
committee has made a difference. Evidence of effectiveness will usually be 
characterised as ‘influence’, ‘persuasion’ and ‘support’. A good standard of 
performance against recommended practice, together with a knowledgeable 
and experienced membership are essential requirements for delivering 
effectiveness.

6.2 Using the recommended practice in the CIPFA Audit Committees Practical 
Guidance should help the authority to achieve a good standard of 
performance. Included within this guidance is a checklist ‘Self-Assessment of 
Good Practice’ which will support an assessment against recommended 
practice to inform and support the audit committee. 

6.3 Also contained within the guidance is an assessment tool ‘Evaluating the 
Effectiveness of the Audit Committee’ to help audit committee members to 
consider where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. 
To be considered effective, the audit committee should be able to identify 
evidence of its impact or influence linked to specific improvements.

6.4 The draft self-assessment checklist (Appendix 1) and the draft assessment 
tool (Appendix 2) have been completed by the Head of Audit in conjunction 
with the Chief Executive. The committee are requested to discuss these 
documents and form agreement on their content. 

6.5 The self-assessment checklist and assessment tool scores reflect the work 
that was done to develop the committee structure, skills and knowledge 
following a report presented to this committee in September 2016. 
Councillors may be aware that following a knowledge and skills framework 
self-assessment, changes were made to the structure and Terms of Reference 
of the committee in order to enhance existing arrangements and fill knowledge 
gaps. This included the appointment of independent members to the 
committee.

6.6 It is planned to use the self-assessment tool developed by CIPFA as part of 
their publication ‘Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities 
and Police 2018 Edition’ to identify and evaluate the overall knowledge and 
skills of the current members of the committee, to identify training needs and 
to enable the committee to perform effectively.

6.7 As the committee will be considering and discussing the effectiveness of the 
Audit & Regulatory Committee, it is appropriate for the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee’s Terms of Reference (TOR) to be considered also. The current 
TOR are based on the CIPFA suggested TOR. For ease of reference the Audit 
& Regulatory Committee’s Terms of Reference as agreed at the July 2019 
Audit & Regulatory Committee are attached at Appendix 3.

Page 131



6.8 The committee is requested to make an appropriate recommendation to 
Council to approve Audit & Regulatory Committee’s Terms of Reference.

Page 132



APPENDIX 1
AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE

SELF-ASSESSMENT OF GOOD PRACTICE 2019/20
This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out in 
CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police and the 
CIPFA practical guidance. Where an audit committee has a high degree of performance 
against the good practice principles then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly 
based and has in place a knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in 
developing an effective audit committee.

A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit committee work 
programme and training plans. It can also inform an annual audit report.

Good practice questions Yes Partly No
Audit committee purpose and governance 

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? 

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full council? 
 (Applicable to local government only.)



3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the 
committee in accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement?



4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and 
accepted across the authority?



5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in 
meeting the requirements of good governance?



6 Are the arrangements to hold the Committee to account for its 
performance operating satisfactorily?



Functions of the committee
7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the 

core areas identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement?

 good governance 

 assurance framework, including partnerships and 
collaboration arrangements



 internal audit 

 external audit 

 financial reporting 

 risk management 

 value for money or best value 

 counter-fraud and corruption 

 supporting the ethical framework 

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the 
committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and that adequate 
consideration has been given to all core areas?



Page 133



Good practice questions Yes Partly No

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified 
in CIPFA’s Position Statement and whether it would be 
appropriate for the committee to undertake them?



10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, 
are plans in place to address this?

N/A

11 Has the committee maintained its advisory role by not taking on 
any decision-making powers that are not in line with its core 
purpose?



Membership and support
12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of 

the committee been selected?
This should include:
 separation from the executive
 an appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the 

membership
 a size of committee that is not unwieldy
 consideration has been given to the inclusion of at least one 

independent member (where it is not already a mandatory 
requirement)








13 Have independent members appointed to the committee 
been recruited in an open and transparent way and approved 
by the full council or the PCC and chief constable as 
appropriate for the organisation?



14 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge 
and skills?



15 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with 
briefings and training?



16 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against 
the core knowledge and skills framework and found to be 
satisfactory?



17 Does the committee have good working relations with key 
people and organisations, including external audit, internal 
audit and the CFO?



18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the 
committee provided?



Effectiveness of the committee
19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from 

those interacting with the committee or relying on its work?


20 Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion and 
engagement from all the members?



21 Does the committee engage with a wide range of leaders and 
managers, including discussion of audit findings, risks and 
action plans with the responsible officers? 



Page 134



Good practice questions Yes Partly No

22 Does the committee make recommendations for the 
improvement of governance, risk and control and are these 
acted on?



23 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding 
value to the organisation?



24 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas 
of weakness?



25 Does the committee publish an annual report to account for its 
performance and explain its work?



Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE
EVALUATING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 2019/20

Assessment key
5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively 

supporting improvements across all aspects of this area.  The improvements made 
are clearly identifiable.

4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively 
supporting improvement across some aspects of this area.

3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area.  
There is some evidence that demonstrates their impact but there are also significant 
gaps.

2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the 
impact of this support is limited.

1 No evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in 
this area.

Page 137



Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas 
of strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment:
5 – 1
See key above

Promoting the principles of 
good governance and their 
application to decision making.

Supporting the development of a local code of governance.
Providing robust review of the AGS and the assurances 
underpinning it.
Working with key members/PCC and chief constable to improve 
their understanding of the AGS and their contribution to it.
Supporting reviews/audits of governance arrangements.
Participating in self-assessments of governance arrangements.
Working with partner audit committees to review governance 
arrangements in partnerships.

Local Code of 
Governance
Annual review & 
approval of AGS.
Review of progress 
against AGS action 
plan.
Review of IA & EA 
findings.

3

Contributing to the development 
of an effective control 
environment.

Actively monitoring the implementation of recommendations from 
auditors.
Encouraging ownership of the internal control framework by 
appropriate managers.
Raising significant concerns over controls with appropriate senior 
managers.

Review of progress 
against all IA 
recommendations.
Robust challenge 
of IA findings.

4

Supporting the establishment of 
arrangements for the 
governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to 
manage risks.

Reviewing risk management arrangements and their 
effectiveness, e.g. risk management benchmarking.
Monitoring improvements.
Holding risk owners to account for major/strategic risks.

Approval of RM 
Strategy.
Review and 
challenge of RM 
updates.

4

Advising on the adequacy of the 
assurance framework and 
considering whether assurance 
is deployed efficiently and 
effectively.

Specifying its assurance needs, identifying gaps or overlaps in 
assurance.
Seeking to streamline assurance gathering and reporting.
Reviewing the effectiveness of assurance providers, e.g. internal 
audit, risk management, external audit.

Review of 
effectiveness of IA, 
EA, RM, Treasury 
Management & 
AGS.

3

P
age 138



Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas 
of strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment:
5 – 1
See key above

Supporting the quality of the 
internal audit activity, 
particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence.

Reviewing the audit charter and functional reporting 
arrangements.
Assessing the effectiveness of internal audit arrangements, 
providing constructive challenge and supporting improvements.
Actively supporting the quality assurance and improvement 
programme of internal audit.

Approval of IA 
Charter.
Robust challenge 
of IA work.
Annual 
assessment of 
effectiveness of IA.

5

Aiding the achievement of the 
authority’s goals and objectives 
through helping to ensure 
appropriate governance, risk, 
control and assurance 
arrangements.

Reviewing how the governance arrangements support the 
achievement of sustainable outcomes.
Reviewing major projects and programmes to ensure that 
governance and assurance arrangements are in place.
Reviewing the effectiveness of performance management 
arrangements.

Review and 
approval of AGS 
process.
Governance, risk, 
control and 
assurance 
arrangements 
reviewed.

3

Supporting the development of 
robust arrangements for 
ensuring value for money.

Ensuring that assurance on value for money arrangements is 
included in the assurances received by the audit committee.
Considering how performance in value for money is evaluated as 
part of the AGS.

Review of IA & EA 
VFM assurances.
Review and 
approval of AGS 
process.

3

Helping the authority to 
implement the values of good 
governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering 
fraud and corruptions risks.

Reviewing arrangements against the standards set out in the 
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
(CIPFA, 2014).
Reviewing fraud risks and the effectiveness of the organisation’s 
strategy to address those risks.
Assessing the effectiveness of ethical governance arrangements 
for both staff and governors.

Review & Approval 
of CF&C Strategy 
& RIPA policy.
Review of 
arrangements for 
fraud risks to be 
developed.

2

P
age 139



Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit committee can add value and provide 
evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment:

5 – 1
See key above

Promoting effective public 
reporting to the authority’s 
stakeholders and local 
community and measures to 
improve transparency and 
accountability.

Improving how the authority discharges its responsibilities for 
public reporting; for example, better targeting at the audience, 
plain English.
Reviewing whether decision making through partnership 
organisations remains transparent and publicly accessible and 
encourages greater transparency.
Publishing an annual report from the committee.

All meetings open 
to the public. 
Agendas and 
reports distributed 
to media.

2

P
age 140



APPENDIX 3

Terms of Reference – Audit & Regulatory Committee

Composition
1 The Audit & Regulatory Committee shall consist of the following membership:

 9 councillors appointed by the Council for such term of office as 

determined by the Council.

 3 independent non-voting members appointed to attend and participate at 

committee meetings.

2 The Committee shall report direct to Council on the matters contained in its 

Terms of Reference (below) in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and 

Procedure Rules contained therein.

3 The Committee may:

 appoint a sub-committee of three elected members to deal with urgent 

and minor matters within the Committee’s terms of reference.

 appoint a special panel of elected members with full delegated powers 

to take a decision on a planning application made by the Council where 

the Development Control Committee is minded to refuse it.

 appoint a sub-committee of six elected members to make 

recommendations relating to the operation of the Council’s 

Constitution.

Statement of Purpose
1 The Audit & Regulatory Committee is a key component of High Peak Borough 

Council’s corporate governance. It provides an independent and high-level 

focus on the audit, assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good 

governance and financial standards. 

2 The purpose of the Audit & Regulatory Committee is to provide independent 

assurance to the members of the adequacy of the risk management 

framework and the internal control environment. It provides independent 

review of High Peak Borough Council’s governance, risk management and 

control frameworks and oversees the financial reporting and annual 

Page 141



governance processes. It oversees internal audit and external audit, helping 

to ensure efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place.

3 The Committee has responsibility for other matters including elections, the 

Name and status of areas and individuals, parish/town councils, by-laws and 

orders and other regulatory issues.

Governance, risk and control
1 To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good 

governance framework, including the ethical framework and consider the local 

code of governance. 

2 To review and approve the Annual Governance Statement and consider 

whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, 

taking into account internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and 

control. 

3 To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 

assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements. 

4 To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it 

adequately addresses the risks and priorities of the council. 

5 To approve the risk management strategy and monitor the effective 

development and operation of risk management in the council.

6 To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the 

committee. 

7 To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the 

implementation of agreed actions. 

8 To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council 

from fraud and corruption. 

9 To approve and monitor the counter-fraud and corruption strategy and 

whistleblowing policy, actions and resources.

10 To approve the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) policy 

and procedures and monitor the Council’s use of RIPA powers. 

11 To recommend to Council the approval of the Annual Treasury Management 

Strategy and Annual Treasury Management Report and scrutinise all treasury 

management reports.

Page 142



Internal audit
1 To approve the internal audit charter.

2 To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers 

of internal audit services and to make recommendations. 

3 To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s 

resources requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance 

and any work required to place reliance upon those other sources. 

4 To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan 

and resource requirements. 

5 To make appropriate enquires of both management and the head of internal 

audit to determine if there any inappropriate scope or resources limitations.

6 To consider any impairments to independence or objectivity arising from 

additional roles or responsibilities outside of internal auditing of the head of 

internal audit. To approve and periodically review safeguards to limit such 

impairments. 

7 To consider reports from the head of internal audit on the internal audit’s 

performance during the year, including the performance of external providers 

of internal audit services. These will include:

 Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of 

concern and action in hand as a result of internal audit work. 

 Regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 

Programme. 

 Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform 

to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government 

Application Note, considering whether the non-conformance is significant 

enough that it must be included in the Annual Governance Statement. 

8 To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report:

 The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note and the results 

of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that supports the 

statement – these will indicate the reliability of the conclusions of internal 

audit. 

Page 143



 The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control together with the 

summary of the work supporting the opinion – these will assist the 

committee in reviewing the Annual Governance Statement. 

9 To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 

10 To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit 

has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be 

unacceptable to the authority or there are concerns about progress with the 

implementation of agreed actions.

11 To contribute to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and in 

particular, to the external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place 

at least once every five years.  

12 To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the 

Annual Governance Statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations.

13 To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the 

head of internal audit, including the opportunity for a private meeting with the 

committee. 

External audit
1 To support the independence of external audit through consideration of the 

external auditor’s annual assessment of its independence and review of any 

issues raised by PSAA or the authority’s auditor panel as appropriate.

2 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the 

report to those charged with governance.

3 To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

4 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 

gives value for money. 

5 To commission work from internal and external audit. 

6 To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between 

external and internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies. 

Page 144



Financial reporting 
1 To review and approve the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to 

consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and 

whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the 

audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council. 

2 To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from the audit of the accounts. 

3 In relation to the approval of the annual statement of accounts, only the 

elected members of the Council shall be entitled to vote upon any such 

resolution, in accordance with the relevant statutory provisions concerning the 

regulation and control of an authority’s finances by elected members alone.

Accountability arrangements
1 To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, 

conclusions and recommendations concerning the adequacy and 

effectiveness of their governance, risk management and internal control 

frameworks; financial reporting arrangements, and internal and external audit 

functions. 

2 To report to full council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in 

relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in 

meeting its purpose. 

Elections and Parish/Town Councils
1 Duty to appoint an electoral registration officer

2 Power to assign officers in relation to requisitions of the registration officer

3 Functions in relation to parishes and parish councils

4 Power to dissolve parish councils

5 Power to make orders for grouping parishes, dissolving groups and 

separating parishes from groups

6 Duty to appoint returning officer for local government elections, referenda and 

Police Commissioner Elections

7 Duty to provide assistance at European Parliamentary elections

8 Duty to divide constituency into polling districts

Page 145



9 Power to divide electoral divisions and wards into polling districts at local 

government elections

10 Power to designate polling places

11 Powers in respect of holding of elections

12 Power to pay expenses properly incurred by electoral registration officers

13 Power to fill vacancies in the event of insufficient nominations

14 Duty to declare vacancy in office in certain cases

15 Duty to give public notice of a casual vacancy

16 Power to make temporary appointments to parish councils under Section 91 

of the Local Government Act 1972

17 Power to determine fees and conditions for supply of copies of, or extracts 

from, elections documents

18 Power to submit proposals to the Secretary of State for an order under section 

10 (pilot schemes for local elections in England and Wales) of the 

Representation of the People Act 2000

Name and status of areas and individuals
1 Power to change the name of the Borough (recommendation to Full Council)

2 Power to change the name of a parish (recommendation to Full Council)

3 Power to confer title of honorary freeman (recommendation to Full Council)

Byelaws and Orders
1 Power to promote or oppose local or personal Bills and to consider the making 

of an order identifying a place as a designated public place for the purposes of 

police powers in relation to alcohol consumption for recommendation to full 

council for approval

Regulatory Matters
1 Power to make payments or provide other benefits in cases of 

maladministration etc.

2 Power to approve or make recommendations to Full Council with regards to 

the operation of the Council’s Constitution in accordance with Article 14 of the 

Constitution.

Page 146



3 Any other matter involving a regulatory or quasi judicial, function of the 

Council which by law cannot be the responsibility of the Executive and for 

which no other provision is made in the Constitution

4 Functions under any of the “relevant statutory provisions” within the meaning 

of Part 1 (health, safety and welfare in connection with work, and control of 

dangerous substances) of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, to the 

extent that those functions are discharged otherwise than in the authority’s 

capacity as an employer

5 All regulatory functions under the Derbyshire Act 1981

6 The making and revocation of appointments to outside bodies where the 

appointments relate to Council functions

7 Making recommendations to the Council on the nomination of the Mayor 

8 Matters relating to civic and ceremonial protocol and the mayoralty

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21
 

Item Feb
 2021

June
 2021

Sept
 2021

Dec
 2021 Details 

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit Progress Report    
Reports on progress against the audit plan inc. key 
performance information.

Annual Audit Plan  To consider and approve the Annual Audit Pan.

Internal Audit Annual Report 
To consider Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control environment.

Annual Review of Effectiveness of IA 
To consider an annual review of the effectiveness of 
the Council’s system of internal audit.

Internal Audit Charter 
To consider updates to the formal document that 
defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. (as required)

EXTERNAL AUDIT

Audit Committee Update  

A summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that the Committee may wish to 
consider. Also provides a summary of progress on the 
audit – where not covered by other items on the 
agenda.

Audit  Plan 
Report specifying the detailed risks that external audit 
consider as part of their work, the audit approach and 
the result of any interim work

Audit Findings Report 
To consider the external auditor’s report to those 
charged with governance on issues arising from the 
audit of the accounts and the VFM conclusion.

Annual Audit Letter  
To consider the external auditor’s annual report on 
their overall assessment of the Council.

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 
To consider the risk assessment and understanding of 
management processes.

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 15



Item Feb
 2021

June
 2021

Sept
 2021

Dec
 2021 Details 

FINANCE

Statement of Accounts 
To review and approve the Council’s annual 
Statement of Accounts.

Treasury Management Update    
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management position to date and the projected 
outturn.

Annual Treasury Management Report 

To recommend to Council for approval the annual 
Treasury Management Report summarising 
performance and compliance with the Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators.

Treasury Management Strategy  
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy.

CORPORATE

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
To review and approve the Annual Governance 
Statement and the underlying assurance evaluation 
process and supporting evidence.

AGS Progress Against Action Plan 
Report on progress made against the actions raised 
as part of the previous years Annual Governance 
Statement process.

Risk Management Update  
Report on developments in the Council’s risk 
management arrangements.

Risk Management Strategy 
Update of the Risk Management Strategy (biennial 
February)

Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy 
To consider updates to the Council’s Counter Fraud 
& Corruption Strategy. (as required)

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Policy 
& Procedures 

To consider updates to the Council’s Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act Policy & Procedures. (as 
required)

Whistleblowing Policy 
To consider updates to the Council’s Whistleblowing 
Policy. (as required)

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Agree Programme of Work     To agree future work programme of A&R Committee.

Review of Effectiveness of A&R Committee 
inc. Terms of Reference 

To consider the annual review of the effectiveness of 
the Audit & Regulatory Committee and the A&R 
Committee’s Terms of Reference.

P
age 150


	Agenda
	3a 12 February 2020
	3b 13 July 2020
	5 Annual Governance Statement (Decision Required)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	6 Statement of Accounts (Decision Required)
	7 Redmond Review Briefing Report
	Appendix 1

	8 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	9 Corporate Governance Review
	10 Internal Audit Annual Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	11 Treasury Management Update
	Appendix A

	12 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	13 Review of the Effectiveness of the Committee (Decision Required)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	15 Work Programme

